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...and we have now set the stage

for an upward growth trajectory in
2013 and beyond...

gy



In 2012 a very strong operating

performance was delivered across all :
the business lines in ANSA Merchant
Bank and its Insurance subsidiaries with

marked progress over the prior year.

recorded in 2012 compared to 2011.

Earnings Before Tax in 2012 was 17%
lower at $190million (2011: $230 million). :
Profit Attributable to Shareholders was
18% lower at $150 million (2011: $184 :
million). Earnings Per Share (EPS) for :
2012 was $ $1.75 (2011: $2.18). The :
performance in 2012 was derived dueto
a conservative stance on the treatment :
of the investment and lending portfolios :
to provide for potential volatility as the
suboptimal economic conditions linger.

{ Mutual Funds
Directors have approved a final Dividend
of 70 cents per share representing a :

total payout for the year of 85 cents,

approximately 48% of earnings. The :

same as prior year.

Investment Banking

2012 was another steady year for our

Investment Banking business with

increased volumes and profitability :
derived by working closely with our :
customers to create value for them by !
introducing new products and services. :
¢ Tatil

Healthy competition continued among

investment banking firms due to an :
environment of reduced capital market :
activity. Our approach remains focused
on risk management and innovation, as :
we continue to interact with the market :
and other players to build value and :
further develop the capital market in a

sustainable manner.
[nvestments
The local

our

market,

- fixed income market. ’
portfolios were realigned during 2012 :

in order to take a more conservative

: stance in response to increased market
¢ volatility and this resulted in modest, but :
Conservative non-cash provisions in :
our lending and investment portfolios
however resulted in lower earnings :
: Asset Finance remains one of our core
- contributors to ourbusiness. Our unique
product offering and convenient, and :
efficient turnaround time has maintained :
our market leader position as a premier
asset finance company. New business
volumes increased an additional 27% :

stable results throughout the year.

Asset Finance

Our foreign :

Tatil Life

Our focus on growing the top line
: through the continuous development
of the sales force continued to show
results in 2012 with growth of $15.8
- million (17%) in Premium Income. Our
: approach to investment management
- was also favourable this year, resulting
:in year over year growth of 64% in
investment income to $82 milion
(2011 - $50 million). Qur policyholders’
liabilities grew to $73 million during the
year, supported by our asset growth of
$93 million and a $15 million increase in
Net Assets.

in 2012, showing compounded growth :

of 55% since the close of 2010. We
continue to innovate with our affiliates
and subsidiaries to create value for our :

customers.

In 2005 we introduced to the market :

our first Mutual Fund and since this

- time, the market has continued to :
embrace our offerings. Our most recent :
total Dividend pay-out remains the : funds, the ANSA TT$ and US$ Income
- Funds continued to grow in 2012 with :
- increases of TTD 256 milion and USD :
- 5 milion to reach AUMs of TTD 448 !
million and USD 18 Million respectively.
: This business line has grown steadily :
© generating better individual returns for
investors and is providing acceptable :

compensation for the Bank.

Our General

Insurance Companyé
generated Profit Before Tax of $80 :

Conclusion

Overall we reflected a less than ideal
performance in 2012 largely due to our
© conservative provisioning stance on our
- investment and lending assets, which
¢ was in line with most of the banking
and investing community.  However,
- we were still able to create value for our
customers and shareholders despite
the backdrop of a sluggish economic
climate.

We are pleased to note internal
leadership promotions which resulted in
a new Managing Director for the Bank
and Chief Executive for Tatil Life, both
individuals having significant careers in
financial services and established track
i records in the Company. At the same
: time we note the resignations of Varun
: Maharaj and Nigel Romano and thank
them for their valuable contributions
during their tenure.

million, reflecting an increase of 10%

over 2011 driven by our insurance :

operations and investment returns. Our

underwriting results improved by 40% :
over 2011 due to increases in our net :
- retained income, but more so due to :
: reduced claims cost which fell by 20%. :
- We also benefited from a 10% growth in
equity component  of :
portfolios  performed  favorably :
throughout 2012 in line with the local :
however we continued to
experience declining yields in the local :

returns on our investment portfolio.. Our

Net Assets increased by 10% to $415 :

million and our AM Best Rating was
reaffirmed to A (-) with a Stable Outlook.

We are satisfied that our performance
© in 2012 will set the stage for continued
sustainability and we have now set the
stage for an upward growth trajectory in
2013 and beyond.

el

Anthony N. Sabga
- ORTT, CMT, Hon.LL.D (UWI)
Chairman
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ANSA MERCHANT BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
(Expressed in thousands of Trinidad & Tobago dollars)

2008 - 2012 ($000's) Dec-12 Dec-11 Dec-10 Dec-09 Dec-08
ANSA Merchant Bank Consolidated
Profit Before Tax 189,812 229,680 225,995 227,574 54,291
Profit After Tax and Minority Interest 149,632 183,616 174,607 193,316 50,206
Total Assets 5,531,354 5,449,049 5,121,300 4,826,555 4,391,479
Actual Number Of Issued Shares 85,605 85,605 85,605 85,605 85,605
Weighted Average Number Of Shares 85,605 84,185 84,185 84,185 84,185
Return On Average Assets 2.73% 3.47% 3.51% 4.19% 1.25%
Return On Average Shareholders' Equity 10.06% 13.15% 13.59% 17.50% 4.85%
Dividends 72,764 72,764 72,764 72,764 25,682
Earnings Per Share ($) 1.75 2.18 207 2.30 0.60
Dividends Per Share (3) 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.30
Net Book Value Per Share (5) 17.84 17.19 15.99 14.53 11.72
ANSA Merchant Bank (Parent)
Net Interest Income 161,880 189,058 175,369 147,332 131,084
Efficiency Ratio 1953 % 14.18% 16.72% 19.38% 2297 %
Risk Adjusted Capital Ratio 40.7 % 36.9% 35.6% 33.2% 38.7%
Trinidad & Tobago Insurance (TATIL)
Net Premium Income 178,953 174,496 176,939 178,230 178,831
Underwriting Profits 47,989 42,655 23,785 21,978 42,611
Net Retention 61% 58% 61% 65% 65%
Claims Ratio 41% 47% 59% 59% 49%
Combined Ratio 82% 83% 94% 93% 81%
TATIL Life Assurance
# of Field Force Agents 100 96 86 67 75
Annual Premium Income (A.P.L) $ 21,267 20,055 21,334 16,870 15,575
Avg API/ Agent ($) 213 209 248 252 208
Persistency 87 88 87 82 89




We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ANSA Merchant Bank Limited (“the Parent”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) which comprise the separate and consolidated statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, separate and consolidated statements of income, separate and consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, separate and consolidated statements of changes in equity and separate and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the separate and consolidated financial statements (“the financial statements”) give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Parent and the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Port of Spain,
TRINIDAD:
26 March 2013
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Statement of Financial Position

AS AT 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

Parent
2011 2012
316,627 279.430
640,543 761212
436,144 401,598
1.052.967 639,577
18316 7.468
14,869 9,932
4.559 11,163
632,500 632,500
3,448 4229
2,253 915
8,100 8.507
—3.130.326 _2.756.531

The accompanying notes lorm an integral part of these financial statements.

Asscets

Cash and short-term funds
Fixed deposits
Net mvestment m leased

asscts and other nstallment loans
Loans and advances
Investment securities
Interest receivable
Insurance recevables
Other debtors and prepaviments
Reinsurance asscls
Taxation recoverable
Investment n subsidianes
Investment properties
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Delerred taxasset
Lmployee benelit asset

Total asscts

Notes

O W

161
11
21
12
13

14
15

16
17

Group
2012 2011
806,035 484,623
26,586 21.390
o806 640 (RG
561.575 521,905
2,826,237 3,142 Ral
26,908 42,051
47 328 37.082
33.230 43016
84.579 125138
12,373 3158
128 943 119469
36.738 35.506
133,762 133762
11.192 9364
95,002 87,635
5531354 5,449,049
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Statement of Financial Position

AS AT 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

Parent Notes Group
2011 2012 2012 2011

Liabilities

Customers” deposits and

1.277.868 925,648 other funding mstrumenis 19 1.767.421 1.767.792

52,611 9343 Bankoverdrali 4 9,343 55871
Accrued mterest and other

47,822 119.607 payables 18 172 971 82,707

757,854 669,073 Debl secuntics n 1ssue 204 66U 073 757854

- —  Taxation payable 2945 2.666

8,886 22,343 Delerred tax hability 16 138,597 119,121

380 434 Employce benefit obligation 17 3548 3129

— —  Investment contract liabilitics 21 1600, 1 56 156,795

— — Insurance contract habibties 22 1,080,124 1,056, 1049

2,145,421 1,746 448  Total liabilities 4004172 4.(K12 044

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



ANSA MERCHANT BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2012
Parent Notes
2011 2012
Equity
667,274 667,274  Stated capital 24
- —  Treasury shares
87.868 99,183  Statutory reserve fund
— —  Statutory surplus reserve
2,800 3,805 General loan loss reserve
(4,228) (2,595) Foreign currency reserve
231,191 242416  Retained eamings
Equity attributable to the
984,905 1,010,083  equity holders of the parent
— —  Non-controlling interest
984,905 1,010,083  Total equity
3,130,326 2,756,531  Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Group

2012 2011
667,274 667,274
- (833)

99,183 87,868
45,048 39,923
3.805 2.800
(2,595) (3,776)
714,054 653,348
1,526,769 1,446,604
413 401
1,527,182 1,447,005
5,531,354 5,449,049

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 26 March 2013 and
signed on their behalf by:

=l

Anthony N. Sabga

Director

Gregory N. Hill
Director
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Parent Group
2011 2012 Notes 2012 2011
- —  Net insurance revenue 25 272,954 272,159
134,838 124744 Finance charges, loan fees and other interest mcome 26 124,695 134,838
84,378 127,378 Investment income 27 287,667 172,366
53,075 43,889  Other income 28 61,840 79.218
272,291 296,011  Total operating income 747,156 658,581
- —  Net insurance benefits and claims incurred 29 (200,957) (181,518)
(79,201) (67.521) Interest expense 30 (89,398) (97,612)
(7,026) (65,410)  Provision for mpairment of investments 31 (102,755) (7,026)
4,195 —  Wrteback of provision for guarantee reserve fund - 4,195
(1,200) (1,200)  Provision for losses on loans and advances (1,200) (1,200)
189,059 161,880  Net operating income 352,846 375420
(15,266) (12,772) Marketing and policy expenses 32 (62,594) (62,696)
(10,729) (18,134)  Personnel expenses 33 (41,653) (31,535)
(810) (1,014)  Depreciation 14 (2,245) (2,179)
(2,160) (2,161) Management fees (11,186) (9.478)
(9,087) (10,373)  General administrative expenses 34 (45,356) (39.852)
(38,052) (44454) Total selling and adminis tration expenses (163,034) (145,740)
151,007 117426 Net profit before taxation 189,812 229,680
(30,100) (22,494)  Taxation expense 35 (40,180) (46,064)
120,907 94,932 Profit for the year 149,632 183,616
Profit attributable to:
120,907 94932 Equity holders of Parent 149,620 183,600
— —  Non-controlling interest 12 16
120,907 94,932 149,632 183,616
Basic and diluted earnings per share 1.75 2,18
Weighted average number of shares (°000) 85,605 84,185

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

Parent
2011 2012
120,907 94932 Profit [or the year
(4,228) 1,633 Other comprehensive income/iloss )
Total comprehensive income for the
1 16,679 96,565 year, net of tax
Attributable to:
116,679 96,565  Equity holders of the Parent
— —  Non-controlling interest
116,679 96,565

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

‘_F’ A .

Group

2012 2011
149,632 183616
1,181 (3,776}
150813 179,840
150,801 179824
12 16
150,813 179.840
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

Statutory General Foreign
Stated reserye Capital  loan loss  currency  Retained Total

Parent capital fund deficit reserve reservwe  carnings cquity
Balance as at 31 December 2010 667,274 75,484 (93) 2,800 231,285 976,748
linpact ofadopting TFRS 9as a1 1 January 2011 = = 93 = it (31.572) (31ATT)
Adjusted balance as at | January 2011 667,274 75,484 - 2800 - 199,713 945,271
Total conprehensive mcome o) = £ s (4.228) 120,907 116.679
Transler Lo statutory reserve [und 12,384 (12.384)
Dividends (Final 2010 and Interim 201 1) 5= — &= T = (77.0415) {77.0415)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 66727 57 868 — 2800 (1.228) 231,191 YRAH05
Total conprehensive meome - — - - 1,633 94,932 96,565
Transfer to peneral Inan loss reserve - - - 1.005 - (1.00%5) -
Transter to statutory rescrve fund - 11,315 — - — (11.315) -
Dividends (Final 2011 and Interim 2012) - - - - - (72,724) (72.724)
Other reserve movenwknls = _ = = = 1,337 1,337
Balance as at 31 December 2012 667,274 9,183 3,805 (2,595) 242416 1O10L,083

Stated  Treasury Statutory  Capital Statutory General Foreign  Retained Total Non- Total

capital shares reserve deficit surplus loan loss  currency earnings controlling equity
Group fund reserve  reserve  reserwe interest
Balance as at 31 December 2010 667,274 (16,362) 75484 20,961 14,529 2,800 - 572738 1337424 8430 1345854
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 (20,961) 42,636 21,675 (8,045) 13,630
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2011 667,274 (16.362) 75484 - 14,529 2,800 - 615,374 1,359,099 385 1,359,484
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (3,776) 183,600 179,824 16 179,840
Other lifec i reserve mo s - - - - - - - (2,055) (2,055) - (2.055)
Sale of treasury shares - 15.529 - - - - - (29.915) (14.386) - (14.386)
Transfer to statutory reserve fund 12,384 25,394 37,778)
Dividends Final 2010 and Interim 2011) (75,878) (75.878) (75.878)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 667,274 (833) 87,868 — 39,923 2,800 (3,776) 653,348 1,446,604 401 1,447,005
Total comprehensive income 1081 149,620 150,801 12 150813
Other life insurance reserve movements - - - - - - - (2.315) (2.315) - (2.315)
Sale of treasury shares 833 833 833
Transfer to general contingency reserves - - - - - 1,005 - (1.005) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve fund - - 11,315 - 5,125 - - (16.440) - - -
Dividends (Final 2011 and Interim 2012) - (72.724) (72,724) (72.724)
Other reserve movements -~ — -~ — — — — 3,570 3,570 - 3,570
Balance as at 31 December 2012 667,274 - 99,183 - 45,048 3,805 (2,595) 714,054 1,526,769 413 1,527,182
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

4 o
- - Jr -_, F_ ——



ANSA MERCHANT

RAMEK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

Parent

2011 2012
151,007 117,426
(318) (353)
810 1,014
7.027 65,410
(5,142) (13,173)
1,200 1,200
(1,419) (3,674)
(2.315) (31,765)
(1,954) 13,096
148,896 149,181
(44.,690) (86,123)
2531 12,298
33.165 (352,220)
(4,195) -
(18,304) 71,785
(3.365) 5,740
136,818 (199,339)
(28.970) (15,213)
107,848 (214,552)

Notes
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit belore taxation
Adjustments for:
Employee benelits 17
Depreciation 14
Impairment on investments 31
Interest capitalised
Increase in provisions
Gain on revaluation ol investments 27
Gam on revaluation of investment property 13
Gain on sale of investments and hxed asseis 27
Write off ol capital expenditure 34

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Operating profit before working camial changes

Increase m nvestment m leased assets and loans
and advances

Decrease/(increase) in interest receivahle and
other debtors and prepayments

Increase/(decrease) i customers” deposits and
other funding instruments and debit sceurities

Decrease in guarantee reserve fund

(Decrease)/inerease in accrued imieresi and other pavables

(Increase)/decrease in Central Bank reserve
account

Increase in msurance and investment cantracts

Taxes paid

Cash generated [rom/(used in) operaiing activities

The accompanying notes form an intcgral part ol these [inancial statcments.

Group

2012 2011
189812 229,680
(6,948 (7.596)
2245 2.179
102,755 7,027
(23.549) (10.963)
1.200 1.200
(48417} {14,112}
(9.474) =
(40,104 3.092
6,900 -
16.867 {3.635)
191.282 204 870
(100.447) (40,719
58.729 (40124
(371} 156,910
- {4,1935)
90.264 (111}
3.740 (3.365)
27370 82.364
272,567 355,630
{32.197) (45,347
240,370 310,283




(Continued)
Parent Group
2011 2012 Notes 2012 2011
Cash flows from investing activities
- — Placement of fixed deposits (32,586) (38,678)
- — Maturity of fixed deposits 27,496 42,596
96 — Proceeds fromsale of fixed assets - 195
Additions to fixed assets
(1,276) (1,795) and mvestment properties (13,773) (11,783)
(634,524) (1,252,491) Purchase of investments (4,383.871) (1,652,594)
600,452 1,642,154  Sale or maturity of mvestments 4,697,549 1,178,836
Net cash generated from/(used in)
(35,252) 387,868 investing activities 294,815 (481,428)
Cash flows from financing activities
_ (88,781) Repayment of'debt securities (88,781) _
_ _  Re-issue of units _ 30,000
(77,045) (72,724) Dividends paid (72,724) (77,045)
(77,045) (161,505) Net cash used in financing activities (161,505) (47,045)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(4,449) 11,811 and cash equivalents 373,680 (218,190)
Cash and cash equivalents at
215,545 211,096 the beginning of the year 375,832 594,022
Cash and cash equivalents at the
211,096 222907 end of the year 749,512 375,832
Represented by:
263,707 232,250  Cash and cash equivalents 758,855 431,703
(52,611) (9.343) Bank overdraft (9,343) (55,871)
211,096 222,907 4 749,512 375,832
Supplemental information:
83,344 75,801 Interest and dividends received 123,724 161,455
76,056 69,423 Interest paid 71,977 100,865

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

1. Principal activities of the Group

ANSA Merchant Bank Limited (‘the Bank’™ or “Parent’) was incorporaied in the Republic of Trinidad and
Tobago on 3 March 1977. Its registered office is located at ANSA Centre. 11 Maraval Read. Port of Spain.
The Bank is licensed under the provisions of the Financial Institutions Act 2008 10 carrv on the following
classes of business:

Confirming House/Acceptance House
Finance House/Finance Company
Leasing Corporation

Mortgage Institution

Merchant Bank

Trust Company

Unit Trust

Financial Secrvices

The Bank has also been granted full Authorised Dealer Siaius by the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago
under Scction 5 of the Exchange Control Act, Chapter 79:53(1 and is authorised to iake deposits, grant credit
facilitics and otherwise deal in foreign currency consistent wiih ihe ierms of its licence.

The Bank has a primary listing on the Trinidad & Tobago Siock Exchange. The Bank was regisiered by the
Trinidad and Tobago Sccuritics and Exchange Conunission as a reporiing issuer on 18 December 1997 and
was registered under the Sccuritics Industries Act 1995 to conduct business as a sccuriiies company on 6
May 1999,

The ANSA Merchant Bank Group (the ‘Group’} is a financial services group comprising of five (3}
subsidiarics. The Group is engaged in a wide range of banking and financial related activiiies and carries on
all classes of long-term and short-term insurance business and the renial of property in Trinidad and Tobago
and the Caribbean. A [ull listing ol the Group’s subsidiaries is defailed in Note 12, The ultimate parent of e
Group is ANSA McAL Limited (“Ultimate Parent”}.

2. Significant accounting policies
i) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been preparcd on a hisiorical cost basis. except for the
measurcment at fair value of trading investment sccuritics. investmeni properties and other
financial asscts not held in a business model whase objective is 10 hold asscis to collect contractual

cash flows or whose contractual terms do net give risc solely to pavments of principal and interest.

The financial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars (5} wiich is the functional
currency and all values arc rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wiih Iniernaiional Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issucd by International Accounting Siandards Board (JASB).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Presentation of financial statements

Financial assets and [inancial habilities are offset and the net amount reported i the statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to affset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention o settle on a net basis, or io realize the asseis and setile the lability
simultancously. Income and expense is net offset in the siaiement of income unless required or
permitted by any accounting standard or interpreiaiion, and as specifically disclosed in the
accounting policies ol the Group.

The Group presents its statement of financial position breadly m order of hquidity. Amnalysis
regarding recovery or settlement in the 12 months afier the statemen of finaneial pesition date
(current) and more than 12 months after the statement of financial posnion daie (non-current} is
presented in Note 41,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated [inancial stalements comprise the financial statements of ANSA Merchant Bank
Limited and 1ts subsidiaries (including special purpose entities that the Bank consolidates} as at 31
December 2012 The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting vear
as the Parent Company, using consistent accounimg pelicies.

During 2005, 2007, 2009 and 2010 respectively, the Bank established the ANSA Secured Fund,
ANSA USS Secured Fund, ANSA EURO Income Fund, ANSA TTS Income Fund and ANSA USS
Income Fund (the “Funds™) as open-ended mutual funds and acts as the sponsor, imvestment
manager, administrator and distributor of the Funds.

Because the Bank (i) has established the Funds for a specific business purpose, (ii) has the ability to
control the use of the Funds™ assets, and (iii) retains the majority of the residual risks related to the
Funds’ assets pursuant to Standing Interpretations Committee SIC-12 - “Special Purpose Entities”,
the Bank has consolidated the Funds in these financial statemenis

All imtercompany balances and transactions, l_u(:ludin.g unrealised pmﬁi_s M liﬁi_mg fram mira BIOUD
transactions have been ehimmated m full. Umealised lasses are elimimaied unless costs cannot he
recovered

Subsidiaries are all entites over which ihe Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating poheies generally accompanymg a sharehelding of more than 50% of the voting rights,
Subsidianes are lly consolidated lrom the date on which contrel 15 ransfered io the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that conirel ceases The Pareni accounis for invesiments in
siibsicharies on a cost basis
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

ii)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
[FRS 9 - Financial Instruments.: Classification and Measwrement

The Group has carly adopted IFRS 9 cffective 1 January 2011 and has chosen to apply the
exemption given in the transitional provision for carly application of 1FRS ¥ and hence did not
restate comparative information in the year of munal apphcanon. Any difference between the
previous carrying amount and the carrying amount at the beginning of the annual reporting peried
was recognized in the opening retained carmings. The change m accounting peolicy was made n
accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS .

RS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurenient - Financial Assets

IFRS 9 mitroduces new classification and measurement requiremenis for financial assets that are
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement. Specifically,
IFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be classified and subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or [air value on the basis of the entity’s business medel for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asseis.

As required by IFRS 9, debt mstruments are measured ai amortised cost enly 1if (1} the asset 1s held
within a busimess model whose objective 15 o hold assets in order to collect contactual cash flows
and (i1) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and mterest on the pringipal amewunt outstanding I etther of the two
eritena 1s not met, the debt mstruments are classified as at fan value through statement of imcome
(FVSI)

However, the Group may choose at initial recogniiion to designate a debt imstrioment that meets the
amortised cost critenia as at FVSL T doing so elimimates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismateh. In the ewrrent year, the Group has not elected 1o designaie any debt instruments that
meel the amortised cost eriteria as at FVSL Debt mstruments that are subsequently measuied at
amortised cost are m_Lh_|ecl to impamrment

Investments in equity instruments are classified and measured as at FVSI except when the equity
mmvestment is not held for trading and is designated by the Group as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). If the equity investment is designated as at FVOCL, all gains and
losses, except for dividend income that is generally recognised in statement of income in
accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
subsequently reclassified to statement of income.

The change in accounting policy had a positive impact of $0.30 on basic and diluted carnings per
share for the period ended 31 December 2011,
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (coniimued}
New accounting policies adopted in the current year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial siatements are consisient with
those followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual financial siatements for the vear ended 31
December 2012 except for the standards and interpretaiions noted below:

IAS I Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments fo FAS ]

This is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 July 2012, The amendments to 1AS 1
change the grouping of items presented in ather camprehensive income (OCI}). liems that would be
reclassified (or recycled) to the statement ef imcome at a [uture peini m me (for example
derecognition or settlement) would be presented separatelv frem items thai will never be
reclassified. The amendments do not change the nature of the items that are currenily recognised in
OCI, nor do they impact the determinatien ef whether items in OCI are reclassified through
statement ol income in future periods.

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferved Faves: Recavery of Underiving Assers

This amendment 1s effective for annual perods beginming on or after 1 January 2012, The
amendment to IAS 12 introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment
properties measured at fair value will be recognised an a sale basis, unless an eniity has a business
maodel that would indicate the imvestment property will be consumed in the business. If consuwmed,
an own use basis must be adopted  The amendment alse intieduces the requiement that deferred
tax on non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluabon model of TAS 16 should always be
measired on a sale basis

Standards issued but not vet effective

Standards 1ssued but not yet effective up to the date of 1ssuance of the Group’s financial statements
are listed below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which the Group reascnably
expeets to be applicable at a future date. The Group intends to adopt those standards when they
become effective. Except as otherwise stated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these
standards to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

[FRS I Government Loans - Amendments to FERS i

This is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, The IASB has added an
exception to the retrospective application of IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments (or IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. as applicable) and IAS 20 Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. These amendments require first-time adopters to
apply the requirements of IAS 20 prospectively fo government loans existing at the date of
transition to IFRS.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (coniimued}
Standards issued but not yet effective (continuecd}
IFRS 7 Disclosure - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IFRS 7

This is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier | January 2013, These amendments
require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related arrangements (c.e.,
collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users with informaneon that i1s useful in
cvaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial poesition. The new disclosures
arc required for all recognised financial insirumenis that are set off 1 accordance with TAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclasures alse apply ie recegnised financial instruments
that are subject to an enforceable master nefting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of
whether they are set ofT in accordance with [AS 32.

RS 10 Consolidated I'inancial Statements. 1AS 27 Separaie Financial Statements

This 1s effective for annual periods beginming on or afier 1 January 2013, IFRS 10 replaces the
portion of TAS 27 that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
addresses the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpese Entities resulting in SIC-12
bemg withdrawn. TAS 27, as revised, 15 limited io the accounting for imvesiments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in separate financial statements.

[FRS 11 Joint Arrangements, TAS 28 Invessmenis in Associates and Jomt Ventures

This 1s effective for annnal penods begimning on or after 1 January 2013 TFRS 11 replaces [AS 31
Interests in Jomt Ventures and SIC-13 Jomnily-controlled Entties - Non-monetary contributions by
Ventuwrers Jomt control under [FRS 11 15 delined as cantractually agreed sharimg of contiol of an
arrangement, which exists only when the decisions about the 1elevani aciivities requive the
unanimous consent of the parties sharning connol. The reference o “centiol” in “joint control”
refers to the defimtion of “control™ in [IFRS 10},

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Qther Entities

This is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2013, [FRS 12 applies to an
entity that has an interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or siructured entities.
Many of the disclosure requirements of [FRS 12 were previously included in IAS 27, 28 and 31,
while others are new.

The objective of the new disclosure requirements is te help the users of the financial statements
understand the following:

®  The effects of an entity’s nterests m other eniities on 1is financial position, financial
performange and eash Hows,

®  The nature of, and the risks associated with, the entity’s interest in ather enfities.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (coniimued}
Standards issued but not yet effective (continuecd}
RS 13 Fair Value Measurement

This is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2013, 1FRS 13 does not affeet
when fair value is used, but rather deseribes how 1o measure fair value where fair value is required
or permitted by IFRS.

Fair valuc under IFRS 13 is defined as “the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to
transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between markel pariicipants ai the measurement date™
(i.e., an “exit price”). “Fair value™ as used in IFRS 2 Share-based Payments and IAS 17 Leases 1s
excluded from the scope ol [FRS 13.

148 19 Emplovee Benefits (Revised)

This is effective for annual periods beginming on or afier 1 January 2013, The revised standard
imcludes a number of amendments that range fiom findamenial changes to simple clarification and
re-wording. The more significant changes include the following:

e For delined benefit plans, the ability to defer recognition of aciuanal gains and losses (1.e | the
corridor approach) has been removed, as revised, actuanal gaing and losses arve recognized in
OCT when they ocewr. Amounts recorded m pofit or less are limited to cunent and past service
costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net inferest income (expense). All other changes in
the net defined benefit asset (liability) are recognised in OCI with no subsequent recyeling to
profit or loss.

e Objectives for disclosures of defined benefit plans are explicitly stated in the revised standard,
along with new or revised discloswe requirements. Thexe new disclosmes include quantitative
mformation of the sensitivity of the defined henefit obligation to a reasonably possible change
n each _f-“.igrltﬁc;fml_ actuanal assumplion.

e Termination benefits will be recognised at the carlier of when the offer of termination cannot
be withdrawn, or when the related restructuring costs are recognised under [AS 37 Liabilites.

e The distinction between short-term and other long-term employee benefits will be based on
expected timing of settlement rather than the employee’s enr_iﬂ-emena to the henefiis

TAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Fiabilities — Amendments fo JAS 32

This 15 effective for annual peniods begimming on or afier 1 January 2014 These amendments
clanfy the meanmg of “currently has a legally enforceable night to set-of”. The amendments also
clanfy the application of the TAS 32 offsettimg cniena o seitlement systems (such as cential
cleanng house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are net simultaneous
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

i)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (coniimued}
Standards issued but not yet effective (continuecd}
IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities  Amendments fo IAS 32 (continued}

IAS 32 paragraph 42(a) requires that “a financial assei and a financial hability shall be offset when,
and only when, an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts.”
The amendments clarify that rights of set-off must not only be legally enforceable in the normal
course of business, but must also be enforceable in the event of default and the event of bankruptey
or insolvency of all of the counterparties to the coniract, ncluding the reperting entity itself. The
amendments also clarify that rights of set-off must not be contingent an a future event.

The TAS 32 offselling criteria require the reporting entity 1o intend etiher io setile on a net basis. or
lo realise the asset and settle the liability simultancouslv. The amendments clanfy those only gross
settlement mechanisms with [eatures that eliminate or resuli in insigmficani credii and liquidity risk
and that process receivables and payables i a single settlemeni proecess or cyele would be. in
effeet, equivalent to net settlement and, thercfore. meet the net settlement eriterion. As at 31
December 2012, management 1s currently assessing the impact of this amendment and will adopt
the standard when 1t becomes effective

Rusiness combinations and goodwill

Business combimations are accounted for nsing the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition 1s
measured as the aggregate of the consideration nansfened, measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
accuurer measwes the non-controlling interest in the acquinee either at fan value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net asseis. Acquisition costs incuned are expensed
and ineluded in admimstrative expenses,

When the Group acquires a busmess, 1t assesses the financial asseis and habiliies assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date
through statement of income.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance with [AS 39 either in the
statement of income or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
15 classified as equity. it should not be re-measured vntil it is finally setiled within equity.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

iv)

v)

Business combinations and goodwill (conunued}

After mitial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less anv aceumulated impainment losses. For
the purpose ol impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business cambinabien is. from the
acquisition date, allocated to cach of the Group’s cash-generaiing units thai are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective ol whether other asseis er liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
lo those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and pan of the operation within that unit 1s
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 1s meluded in the carmrving
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed
ol and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Cash and short-term funds
Cash and short-term funds arc defined as cash on hand. demand deposits and shert-term, fnghly
liquid investments readily convertible to known ameounts of cash on hand and ai bank with onginal

maturitics of threc months or less and subject to insignificant risks of change in valuc.

For the purpose of the statement of cash Nows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shout-
term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank averdrafts.

Statutory deposits with Central Bank

Pursuant to the provisions of the Central Bank Act 1964 and the Financial [nstitutions Act 2008, the

Bank is required to maintain with the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobage statutory balances n

relation to deposit habihities and certain fundimg msouments of the institutions

Financial instruments

Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and subsequent measurentent
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulaiion or convention in the

markelplace

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending en the classification of the financial assets.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

vi)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

a)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continucd)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subscquently measured at
amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through statement of income on initial recognition):

e the assel 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order o
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilied dates to cash flows
that are solely payments ol principal and mterest on the principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
mstrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rale is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an cffective interest basis for debt instruments measured
subscquently at amortised cost. Interest income is recognised in statement of income and
1s included in the "investment mcome” line item.

Financial assets at faiv value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) lo designale investments in equily mstruments as al FVOCI. Designation
al FVOCT 1s not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

A [mancial asset is held for trading 1[:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e onnitial recognition it 1s part of a portfolio ol identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and cffective as a hedging instrument or a
financial guarantee.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

vi)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

a)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (coninued )
Financial assets al fair value throwgh other comprehensive meome (FVOCH (continued

Investments in cquity instruments at FVOCI are mmally measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, thev are measuwied at fair value with gains and losses
anising from changes in fair value recogmsed i other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investments revaluaiien reserve. The cumulaiive gain or loss will not
be reclassified Lo statement ol income an disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equitv mstruments are recognised n the statement of
mcome when the Group’s right te receive the dividend is esiablished n accordance with
IAS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends clearly represeni a recoverv of part of the cost of the
imvestment. Dividends carned are recognised in the statement ef income and are mcluded
in the “investment income” line item (Note 27}

Financial assets at fair valie throwgt staiement of income (FVSH

Investments i equity mstruments are classified as at FVSI, unless the Group designates an
mvestment that 1s not held for trading as at FVOCT on imtial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost erteria are measwed at FVSL In
FVSI are measuwred at FVSL A debt instrument may be designated as at FVSI upon initial
recogmtion 1f such designation eliminates or sigmificantly reduces a measuement or
recogniion meonsistency that would arise fiom measunng asseis or habihities or
recogmising the pmns and losses on them on different bases.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVSI when the business model is
changed such that the amortised cost criteria are ne lenger met. Reclassification of debt
nstruments that are designated as at FVSI on initial recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVSI are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the statement of income.
The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of income is included m the “investment
income’ line item (Note 27). Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 38.

Interest income on debt instruments as at FVSI is included in the net gain or loss described
above. Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVSI is recognised in the
statement of income when the Group’s right te receive the dividends is established in
accordance with IAS 18 Revenue and is included in the net gain or loss described above.

am— ————— - ——

— =
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For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
vi) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
b) Impairment of financial assets
Objective evidence of impairment could inelude:

significant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or counierparty: or

e  breach ol contract, such as a default or delinquency n interesi or principal payments:
or

o it becoming probable that the berrower will enter bankrupiey or financial re-
organisation; or

e  the disappearance of an active market for thai {inancial assei because of financial
difficulties.

For asscts at amortised cost, assets that arc assessed not to be impared mdrvidually are, in
addition, asscssed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could mclude the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments_an increase in the number of delayed paymenis in the porifohio past the average
credit period of 90 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference beiween the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of esumated future cash flows reflecting the amount
of collateral and guarantee, discounted at the financial asset’s anginal effective interest
rate,

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of leans and receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the statement of income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the mnpairment does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

vi)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

o

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when ihe coniraciual rights fo the cash
flows from the assct expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assel 1o another entity. 1f the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ewnership and continues to control the
transferred assct, the Group recognises its retained mterest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pav. If the Group reiains subsiantially all the risks and
rewards ol ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group ceniinues to recognise the
financial assel and also recognises a collateralised berrowing for the preceeds recerved.

On derecognition ol a financial asset measured at ameriised cosi. the difference between
the assel’s carrying amount and the sum eof the consideration reeeived and receivable is
recognised in the statement of income,

On derecognition of a financial asset thai is classified as FVQCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated 1 the mvesiments revaluation 1eserve 1s not reclassified to
the statement of income, but is reclassified to refained carnings.

Financial liabilities

a)

h)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Fmaneial habiliies within the scope of TFRS 9 ave classified as financial habihities at fan

as hedgig mstruments 1 an efTeciive hedge as appopnate. The Group determines the
classification of its Ninancial habiliies at imual recogmion.  All financial habilities are
recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial lhabilities include other pavables,
bank overdrafts, deposit liabilities and debt securities in issue.

The Group has not designated any financial habilities vpon nitial recognition as at fair
value through statement of income.

Derecognition of financial liahilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the ebligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.
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Significant accounting policies (continuced)

vi)

Financial instruments (continucd)
Financial liabilities (continued)
b) Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued]

When an existing financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same lender an
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing hahility are substantally modified.,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmzing of the onginal liability and the
recognition of a new hability, and the difference i the respective carrving amounts 1s
recognized in the stalement of income.

Fair valuation of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded 1 active markets at each reporting date 1s
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (hid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), withoui any deduction for transaction costs at the close
ol business at the end ol the reporting period for listed mstruments.

For financial mstruments not traded in an active market, the faur value 1s determuned using
appropriate internal valuation techniques. These pricing maodels consider. among other factors,
contractual and market prices, correlation. time value of money. credit nsk, vield curve volatility
lactors and/or prepayment rates ol the underlyving positions. The use of different pricing models and
assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to a linked repurchase agreement (‘repa’} are retaned in the financial
statements as trading securitics and the counterparty hability 1s imcluded i amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other deposits as appropriate. Sceurnibies purchased under an
agreement to resell (‘reverse repo’) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks. The
difference between the sale and repurchase price 1s treated as inferest and acerued over the hie of
the repo agreement using the effective yield.

Derivative instruments

The Group uses derivative [nancial instruments. such as forward contracts o hedge its foreign
currency risks i its investment in Ansa Euro Incoine Fund.

Forward and futures contracts are contractual agreements o buy or sell a specified financial
instrument at a specilic price and date in the future. Forwards are customised cantracts transacted in
the over-the-counter market. Futures contracts are transacted n standardised amounts on regulated
exchanges and are subject to daily cash margim requirements.
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Significant accounting policies (continuced)

ix)

X)

Derivative instruments (continued)

The main differences in the risk associated with forward and futures contracts are credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Bank has credit exposure to the counterparties of forward contracts, The credit
risk related to futures contracts 1s considered nunimal because the cash margm requirements of the
exchange help ensure that these contracts are always honoured. Yorward contracts are settled gross
and are, therelore, considered to bear a higher liquidity risk than the futures contracts which are
settled on a net basis. Both types of contracts result in market risk exposure,

The change in the fair value of a hedging dertvative and the change m the fair value of the hedged
item attributable to the risk hedged is recognised i the statement of incame.

Product classification

Insurance contracls

Insurance contracts are delined as those containmg significant insurance risk at the meeption of the
contracl. The signilicance ol insurance risk 1s dependent an bath the prababihiv of an msured event
and the magnitude of its potential effect. This contract 1s with and without discretionary
participation features (DPF). For insurance comiracts with DPFs, the guaranteed element has nat
been recognized separately.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, 11 remains an msurance contract for the
remainder ol its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces sigmficantly during this pertod.

Investment contracts

Any contracts not considered insurance contracts under IFRS are classified as investment contracts.
Deposits collected and benelit payments under mvesiment contracts are not accounted for through
the statement of income , but are accounted for directly through the statement of financial position
as a movement in the investment contract lability.

Insurance receivables

Insurance recervables are recognised when due. The carrving value of msurance recervables s
reviewed for impairment whenever events or cireumstances indicate that the carrving amount may
not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recarded 1n the statement of 1ncomne.

Reinsurance asscts

The Group assumes and cedes reinsurance 1 the normal course of business, Remnsurance assels
primarily include balances due from reinsurance compames for ceded msurance habilities. Prenmums
on reinsurance assumed are recognised as revenue in the same manner as they would be 1f the
reinsurance were considered direct business, taking inte account the product classification of the
reinsured business. Amounts due to reinsurers are estimated inoa manner consistent with the
associated reinsured policies and in accordance with the remmsurance contract. Premiums ceded and
claims reimbursed are presented on a gross basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

xii)

Xiv)

Reinsurance assets (continued)

An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of impainment
occurs. Reinsurance assets are impaired omnly 1f there is ebjective evidenee that the Group may not
receive all amounts due to 1t under the terms of the contract and it can be measured reliably.

Taxation

Current income fax

Tax on the statement ol income [or the year comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax.
Current tax comprises lax pavable calculated on the basis of the taxable income for the vear using
the prevailing tax rate and any adjustment to tax pavable for previeus vears.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the
lax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounis in the financial siatements, except
dilferences relating lo the initial recognition of assets or liabilities which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates (and laws} that have been enacted or substantivelv
cnacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to applv when the related
deferred tax asset i1s realized or the deferred tax liabilitv is settled. Deferred tax assels are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Tax on profit is charged at varying rates depending on the type of busmess that the individual
entities are engaged in and the country in which they reside.

Investment properties

Investment property 1s property held either te eam rental income or for capiial appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business. use i the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured using the cost model, ineluding transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing mvestment property at the time
that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-io-dav
servicing of an investment property. Subscquent fo 1mtial recognition. 1nvesiment properiies arc
valued using the [air value model, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of 1nvestment properties are inchuded 111 the
statement ol income in the period in which they arise.

Fair values are evaluated annually either by way of by an accredited external. independent valuator,
applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Siandards Commutiee or
valued by way of the Directors” who are experienced and qualified to conduct such valuations.

Each property is externally valued at least once every three (3) vears.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

XV)

xvi)

Property and equipment

Property and cquipment are stated at historical cosi net of accumulaled depreciation andior
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Depreeiation 1s provided on the veducing balance methed at
various rates sufficient to write off the cost of the assets over thenw estimaied useful hives, with the
exception of leaschold improvements, which are provided on a siraight-line basis. All ether repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of income as imcuried.

The rates used arc as follows: %4 per aniuin
Motor vehicles 25

Compuler equipment 25-33%
Leaschold improvements 10

Office [urniture, machinery and equipment 16-25

Depreciation 1s computed over the estimated useful life of the asset. Invesiment property which is
owner occupied is accounted for as properly and equipment.

Employee benefits

The Group’s emplovees are covered by the Ansa McAL Pension Plan for Monthly Paid Employees.
This is a contributory defined benefit plan that offers members’ retirement benefits in accordance
with the plan’s Trust Deed and Rules The pension plan 1s adnuinistered by rusiees and the tiust is
entirely divorced from the Group’s finances. The plan 1s fimded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies, taking mte account recommendations of mdependent, qualified
actiuares

The pension acconnting costs for the plan are assessed using the projecied umi credit method
Under this method the cost of providing pensions 1s charged io the statemeni of mcome so as to
spread the regular cost over the service lives of the employees i accordance with the advice of the
qualified actnary who carnies out a full valuaiion of the plan every three years

The Group also provides post-employment medical health benefits to their retirees. The entitlement
to these benelits is based on the employee remaining in service up to relirement age, and the
completion of the minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over
the period of employment. using an accounting methodology similar to that for the defined benefit
plan.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortised in the statement of income over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.

Pension benefits in respect of agents are being funded under a depesit adminisiration contract 11
accordance with the advice of the actuaries.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

xvii)

Insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities

The provision for a life insurance contract is caleulated on the basis of a cash flow matching method
where the expecled cash [lows are based on prudent assumptions depending on the circumstances
prevailing.

The liability 1s determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefit paviments and
the future administration expenses that are directly related to the contract, less the expected
discounted value of the actual gross premiwms that would be paid over the expected luture lifetime of
the contract. The hability is based on best estimate assumptions as lo mortality, persistency,
imvestment income and maintenance expenses that are cxpected te prevail over the life of the
contracl.

A margin for adverse developments is added te each best esiimaie assumption to provide a prudent
estimate of possible future claims. Adjustments te the habilitics at cach end of reporting peried are
recorded m the statement ol income as an expense.

General insurance contract liabilities

General insurance contract liabilities are based on the estimated ultimaie cost of all claims mcurred
but not scttled at year end, whether reported or net. Significant delavs can be experienced in the
notification and settlement ol certain types ol general msurance claims, particularly m respect of
liability business, therefore the ultimate cost cannoi be known with ceriainty at the end of the
reporting period.

Provision for unearned premiums

The proportion of written premiums attributable to subsequent perieds 1s deferred as uncamed
premium. The change in the provision for uncarned premium is taken to the statement of mcome 11
the order that revenue is recognised over the period of risk.

Liability adequacy test

In accordance with IFRS 4, reserving for habilities existing as at the statement of financial position
date from property and casualty lines of business has been tesied for adequacy by independent
actuarial consultants using the Bornhuetter-Fergusson madel.

The Bornhuetter-Fergusson model can be sumnarised as follows:

. This valuation method makes an independent estimate of the gross ultimate claims to a
corresponding premium for cach underwriting vear based on expeetations of claims arising
from the gross premiums wrillen in that vear:

. It estimates a claim run-olT pattern of how claims emerge vear by year until all is known
about the total ultimate claim;
. From the independent estimate of gross ultimate claims. the portion that relates fo past

periods is removed and the resullant balance is the gross claims yel to emerge.
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Significant accounting policies (continuced)

xvii)

Xix)

XX)

Insurance contract liabilities (continucd)

Liability adequacy test (continued)

The independent actuaries concluded in their report dated 26 February 2013 that the carrving
amounts ol the insurance liabilities of the general msurance subsidiary as at 21 December 20612,
respect of IBNR claims and claims from unexpired contracts were adequate.

Provision for other liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of
a past event, which could probably result in an outflow of resources and when a reliable estimate of
the amount ol the obligation can be made.

Guarantee reserve fund

The Bank has guaranteed 100% return of the principal mvested m Ansa Scecured Fund and Ansa
Secured Fund USS, subject to minimum period of investment and a fixed numinum vield en the
units held subject to a delined period ol time, established a the tine of purchase.

The Bank establishes a guarantee reserve fund as a hability on 1is statement of financial position
through the statement of mmcome for any shartfalls that may arise m respect of either principal or
mierest under the guarantee. At cach end of reportimg peried. the Bank values these guaraniees and
any changes required are adjusted accordingly through the statement of income.

Revenue recognition

Loans and advances

[ncome from loans, including origination fees, 1s recogmsed on an amortised basis. Interest 1s
accounted for on the accruals basis except where a lean becomes contractually three menths in
arrcars where the interest is suspended and then accounted for on a cash hasis until the loan s
brought up to date.

fnvestment income

Interest meome 1s recognised in the statement of income as 1t accrues, lakimg mto account the
effective yield of the asset or an applicable floating rate. Investment income icludes the
amortisation of any discount or premium on the constant vield basis. Investiment mcome also
mcludes dividends and any [air value changes.

Interest income 1s accrued until the investiment becomes contractually three months in arrcars at
which time the interest 1s suspended and then accounted for on a cash basis unul the mvestment 1s
brought up to date.

Rental income from investment property under operating leases 1s recognised m the statement of
meome on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

XX)

Xxi)

Xxiii)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Premium income

Premiums [rom life insurance coniracls are recognized as revenue when payable by the
policyholders. For single premium business this 1s the date from which the policy 1s elfective. For
non-life business, premiums wrilien are recognized on policy inception and earned on a pro rata
basis over the term of the related policy coverage.

Fees and commissions

Unless included in the effective mierest caleulation, fees are recognised on an accrual basis as the
service 18 provided. Fees and commissions not integral to the effective interest arising from
negotiating or participating n the negotiation ol a transaction from a third party are recognised on
completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees
are recognised based on the applicable service contract.

Other income and expenditure
Other income and expenditure, inclusive of borrowing costs, are brought into account on the
accruals basis.

Deposit insurance contribution

The Central Bank and the I'mancial Institutions (Non-Banking) (Amendment) Act 1986 established
a Deposit Insurance Fund for the protection of depositors. An annual premium of 0.2% is levied on
the average deposit liability outstanding at the end of cach quarter of the preceding year.

Benefits and claims

Life insurance business claims reflect the cost of all claims incurred during the vear. Death claims
and surrenders are recorded on the basis ol notifications received. Maturities and annuily payments
are recorded when due.

Reported outstanding general insurance claims comprise the estimated costs of all claims incurred
but not settled at the end ol the reporting period, less any reinsurance recoveries. In estimating the
hability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information available
[rom adjusters and information on the cost of sctthing claims with similar characieristics in previous
periods. Provision 1s made for ¢laims mcurred but not reported (IBNR’s) until alter the end ol the
reporting period. Differences between the provisions for outstanding claims and subsequent
revisions and settlement are included m the statement ol income in the year the claims are settled.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions

The Inancial statements are presented in Trinidad and Tobago dollars (expressed i thousands),
which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the linancial
statements ol cach entity are measured using that functional currency.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

XXiii)

XXiv)

XNV)

Xxvi)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Foreign entities

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the unctional currency at the rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and habihties denommated in foreign currencies are
translated into Trimdad and Tobago dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of
financial position date. Exchange differences on [oreign currency transactions are recognised in the
statement ol income.

On consolidation. assets and habilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated to Trimidad and Tobago
dollars at a rate ol exchange ruling at the year end (1.e. 31 December) and 1ts statement of income 18
translated at the weighted average exchange rates lor the year. The exchange dillerences arising on
re-translation are taken direetly to reserves. The same treatment applies to assets and habilities and
statement of income relating to the ANSA USS Secured Fund, ANSA USS Income lund and
ANSA Luro Income Fund under management by the Bank.

Equity movements

Stated capital
The Group has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity, Incremental external costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are 1ecognised in equity, net of tax.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are acquired (reasury shares) are deducted lrom equity and
accounted for al weighted average cosl. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement ol ineome on
the l'ml_a'hﬂm“: sale, ssue or cancellation of the (imul']'.\' own equuly imstruments

Divvidends o ovdinary share capital

Dividends on ardinary shares are recogmised as a habihity and deducted from equnty when they me
approved by the Group s Board of Dircetors. Interim dividends are dedueted from equity when they
are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved alter the statement of linancial position date are dealt with
as an event after the end of reporting date.

Statutory reserve fund

The Financial Institntions Act 2008 requires that not less than 10% ol the net prohit of the Bank
after deduction of taxes in cach year be transleried to a statutory teserve fund until the balance
slanding to the eredit of this reserve is equal to the paid up capital of the Bank.

Statutory surplus reserve

As 1\’_(llIITl‘_l'| |'1}-' Section 171 of the Insurance Act 1980 of Trmdad and I(Jhagn at least 25% of an
insurance company's profit from general insurance business. for the preceding year is to be
appropriated towards a statutory surplus reserve until such surplus equals o exceeds the reserves in
respect ol its oulstanding unexpited policies. This reserve is not distiibutable.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

xxvii)

xxviii)

XXix)

General loan loss reserve

The Bank has cstablished a general reserve for loan losses in accordance with the guidelines issued
by the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago. The reserve has been caleulated at ene half of onc
percent of the loan balance at the year-end and encompasses hire purchase loans, finance leases and
premium financing loans afler deducting uncarned finance charges. This reserve has been
accounted for as an appropriation of retained caimings and is disclosed m the siatement of changes
in equity.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share have been calculated by taking the prefit for the vear aiinbuiable to sharcholders
over the weighted average number of ordinary shares ecutstanding during ihe vear net of treasury
shares (2012: nil; 2011: 1,419.786). There are ne diluiive ordinary shares in 1ssue.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group asscsses at cach reporting date whether there 1s an indication that an assct may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assct 1s required,
the Group estimates the assel’s recoverable amouni. An assei’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of
an asset’s or cash generating unit’s faun value less costs to sell and 1ts value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other asseis o1 groups of assets.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment 1s made at each reporiing date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recogmsed impanment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. IF such incdigation exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A
previous impanment loss 15 reversed only 1 there has been a change mn the estimate used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount simce the last impanment loss was recognised. [f that is
the case, the carrying amount of the assei i1s mereased to its recoverable amount. That imcreased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the assets in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of income unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates in applying Group policies

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilitics, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these asswmptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carryving amount of the asset
or liability affected in future periods.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates in applving Group policies {continued]

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
1s satislied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeahle future. urthermaore,
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
abilily 1o continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the
going concern basis.

Valuation of investments

Fair values are based on quoted market prices [or the specific mstrument, comparisons with other similar
financial instruments, or the use of valuation models. Establishing valuations where there are no quaoted
market prices inherently involves the use of judgement and applving judgement in establishing reserves
against indicated valuations for aged positions, deferiorating economiic conditions (including country
specific risks), concentrations in specific industries, tvpes of mstruments ar currencies, market hquidity,
model risk 1tsell’and other factors.

Pension and other post employment benefits

The cost ol defined benelit pension plans and other post emplovnient medical benefits 1s determined using
actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected
rales of return on asscts, [uture salary increases, mortahity rates and future pensian mercases. Due to the lang
term nature ol these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertamty.

Deferred taxes

In calculating the provision for deferred taxation, managenent uses judgentent to determine the possibility
that future taxable profits will be available to facilitate utilisation of temporary tax differences which may
arise.

Insurance contract liabilities

The estimation ol the ultimate lability arising [rom claims made under life and general insurance contracts 1s

an accounting estimate. There are several sources ol uncertainty that need (o be considered in the estimation of

the liability that the Group will ultimately pay for those clanms.

For the life insurance contracts, estimates are made as 1o the expected number of deaths for cach of the vears
in which the Group 1s exposed to risk. The Group based these estimates on standard industry mortality tables
that reflect historical mortality experience, adjusied where appropnate to reflect the Group’s umique risk
exposure. The number of deaths determines the value of possible future benefits to be puid out which will be
factored into ensuring sullicient cover reserves, which m return 1s maonitored against current and (uture
premiums. For those contracts that insure risk to longevity, prudent allowance 1s made for expected future
mortality improvements, both epidemic, as well as wide rangmg changes to lifestvle, could result in
significant changes to the expected future mortality exposure. All of this result in even more uncertamty in
estimating the ultimate hability.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arnsing fram the assets backing Iife msurance
contracts. These estimates are based on current market returns as well as expectations about future econonmic
and financial developments.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates in applying Group policies {contimued)

Insurance contract liabilities (contunued)

Estimates for future deaths. voluntary terminations, invesiment reiurns and adnumisiraiion expenses are
determined at the inception of the contract and are used io ecalculate the habilitv aver the term of the
contract. At cach end of reporting period, these estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be
reflected in adjustments to the liability.

For general insurance contracts, cstimates have to be made both for the expected ulumaie cost of claims
reported at the end of a reporting period and [or the expecied uliimaie cosi of claims meurred but not vet
reported (IBNR) at the end of a reporting period. It can lake a significani period of time before the ulumate
claims costs can be established with certainty. The primary technique adopied by management in estimating
the cost of notified and IBNR claims is that of using past claim seiilement trends te predict future claims
settlement estimates. At cach end of reporting periad. prior vear claims esiimales are reassessed for
adequacy and changes are made o the provision. General insurance elaims provisions are net discounted for
the time value of money.

Goodwill
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators thai goedwill 1s impaired al each reporting date.
Goodwill 1s lested for impairment, annually and when circumstanees indicate that the carrying value mav be
impaired.

Impairment 1s determined for goodwill by assessing the receverable amount ef the cash-generating units, to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating umits 1s less than their
carrying amount an mmpairment loss 15 recognised. The Group performs s annual mmpanment test of
poodwill as at 31 December. Previously recorded impanment losses for goedwill are not 1eversed in futwe
periods.

When goodwill forms part of a cash-generating umit (or group of cash generating uniis) and part of the
operations within that uni 15 chsposed of, the goodwill associated with the operaiions disposed of 1s included
i the carrying amount of the operation to determine ihe

aam o1 loss on dispesal of the aperation. Goodwill

disposed of in this cirenmstance 15 measured based on the relative values of the operations disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating units retainecd

Cash and short-term funds

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011

Cash and short-term tunds

140,325 118,041 Cash i hand and at bank 510,333 214,723
123,382 114,209 Short-term deposits with other banks 248,522 216,980
263.707 232,250 758,855 431,703

52920 47,180 Central Bank Reserve 47,180 32,920
316,627 279 430 806,035 AR4.623

Cash held at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term depasits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three menths, depending on the immediate cash
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

4. Cash and short-term funds (continued)

The Financial Institutions Act 2008 requires that every financial mstiiniion hold and maintain an account
with the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago to be called a Central Bank reserve account which, at present,
1s equivalent to 9% of the average total liabilities of prescribed deposit and funding imstruments. This reserve
account is non-interest bearing.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalenis compnse the following at
31 December:

Parent Group

2011 2012 2012 2011

140,325 118,041  Cash held and at bank S10,333 214,723

123,382 114209  Short-term deposits with other banks 248,522 216,980

263,707 232,250 TAR B55 431 703
(52.611) (9.343)  Bank overdrafl (9.343) (55.871)

211,096 222 907 749 512 375832

5. Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans
a) Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans
Parent Group

2011 2012 2012 2011

595,693 707,688 Hire purchase TO7 68K 595,693
194,750 225314 Finance leases 224,901 194,178

790,443 933,002 Performing 932,589 TR9.R71
4,228 2936 Non-performing 2.936 4,228

794,671 935938 Cross investment 935,523 794,099
(152,119) (172,762)  Uneamed finance charges and loan fees {(172.693) (152,001)

Net investment in leased assets before

642,552 763,176 ~ provision 762,830 642,098
(1,342) (1.236)  Speecilic provision (1.236) (1,342)
(6G7) (728)  Collective provision {(728) (667)

Net investiment in leased asseis net of
640,543 761212 provision 760,866 640,089
re . ———— T —

E—— —

=
'
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Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans {continued}

b) New business less unearned income

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011

213,949 291,086 New business less uncamed mecome 291 086 213949

¢) Net investment in leased assets and other installments loans before provision has the following
sectorial breakdown:

Parcent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
230,949 253,876 Personal 253875 230,949
411,603 509,300 Commercial 508,955 411,149
642,552 763,176 762 830} 642 (198

d) Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans hefore provision has the following
maturity profile;

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
53,194 68,571 Withm 1 year 68,571 53,194
568,580 648,658 1 to 5 years I8 313 368,126
20,778 45947  Over 5 years 45,946 20778
642 552 763,176 762,830 642,098

1‘) The movement in specific provision for leases and other installment loans is as follows:

Parent and Group 2012 2011
Balance at 1 January 2,009 2,097
Charge for the vear V200 1,200
Amounts written off (1,245) {1.288)

At 31 December L,F)M_

2.009
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For the year ended 31st December 2012
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6.

Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans (continued}

Repossessed collateral

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had in posscssion repossessed vehicles with a fair value of $1.487
(2011: $900). Repossessed vehicles are sold as soon as practical, with the proceeds used te reduee the
outstanding indebtedness.

Loans and advances

Parent

2011 2012
436,144 401,598
436,144 401,598
436,144 401,598
436,144 401,598
4,272 3,749
55,805 76,833
212,864 219,405

111,530 -
51,673 101,611
436,144 401,598
221,514 318913
50,245 65,037
164 385 17,648
436,144 401 598
¢

Policy loans
Morigage loans
Other loans and advances

Performing advances
Non-performing advances

Specific provision

Sectorial analysis of advances
hefore provision

Personal
Retaldistnbution/manufactunng
Hotel and restaurant

Services

Construction and real estate

Loans and advances have the
following maturity profile
hefore provision

Within | year
I to 5 years
Over 5 years

Group
2012 2011
10,866 11,081
88,628 72,302
401.598 436,144
501,092 519,527
834 2,729
501,926 522,256
(351) (351)
501,575 521,905
14,615 15,704
76,833 55,805
219,405 212,864
- 111,330
191,073 126,353
301,926 322,256
318,983 221,578
67,246 53,034
115,697 247,644
301,926 322,256
e — ey

EEE——— —
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

7. Investment securities

Investment sccurities arce stated net of impairment provisions for both the Parent and Group and comprise of
mvestment sccurities designated as at fair value through staicment ef mcome. mvestment sceuriies
measured at amortised cost and investment sccuritics measured at fair value through statement of
comprchensive income.

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Investment securities:
Designated as at fair value through statement of
202,369 192,586 income 1.406.674 1.207.146
789 313 390,630  Amortised cost 1.419.563 1935715
61,285 56,361 l'air value through other comprehensive mcame = =
1,052,967 639577 Total mvestment sccurities 2,826,237 3.142 861
Investment sccurities designated as at
fair value through statement of income
- —  Unquoted equities 6,190 12,476
9,040 7,701 Quoted equities 349,663 391,127
161,939 83,190 Government bonds 330,392 301,774
- 57,105 State-owned company securities 235,292 66,720
31,390 44,590 Corporate bonds 285.137 435.049
202,369 192,586 1.406.674  1.207.146
Investment seeuritics measured at amortised
cost
69,502 27,540 Government bonds 304,674 312,612
252350 152985 State-owned company securities 530,520 726,869
467,461 210,105 Corporate bonds 584.369 896.234
789313 390,630 1,419,563 1,935,715
Investment sceurities designated and
measured at FYOC1
61,285 56,361 Quoted equities - —
61,285 56,361 = —
1,052 967 639 577 Total investment securities 2,826,237 3,142 861

Quoted equities listed under investment securitics designated and measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income relate to the Bank's investment in the mutval funds” under management.



9.

1.

Forward contract

As at 31 December 2012 the Bank had a forward contract that was used as a hedge lor its exposure [or the
changes in the ANSA Luro Income I'und amounting to €4,200,000 (2011: €5,000,000), whereby the Bank
sells Euros and receives USD at the respective foreign exchange rates prevailing upon maturity. The profit
or loss on the hedge and the change in the foreign currency gain or loss 1s recorded n the statement of

income.
Assets pledged

Parent
2011 2012

- - Cash and short-term funds
- - [ oans and advances

- - Bonds and debentures

- - Fquities

- - Real estate

K - Other

Group
2012 2011
115,570 84,338
73,541 85,701
751,975 549 857
201,762 154,287
22,000 22,000
B 270,777
1,164,848 1,167,020

Under the provisions of the Insurance Act 1980 the Group has established and mamtains a statutory fund and
a stattory deposit of which the assets are pledged and held to the order of the Inspector of Financial

Institutions,

Insnrance receivables

Parent
2011 2012

- - Premmums recevable

- - Remsurance recevables

Group
2012 2011
37676 30,420
0,652 6,662
47 328 37,082
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

11. Other debtors and prepayments
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
11,646 8,258 Fees and rent recewvable 2753 3548
Proceeds [rom mvestment
_ _ maturities/repayments 19.819 18459
493 523 Prepayments 3,002 6,333
- 156 VAT receivable 156 —
2,730 995 Other recevables 7506 14676
14,869 9,932 33,230 43 (16
12. Investment in subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statemenis of the Group and the subsidiaries listed
in the following table:

Name of Company Country of incorporation Proportion of

and operation issued capital held
Trinidad and Tobago Insurance Limited Trinidad and Tobago 1%
Tatil Lifc Assurance Limited Trinidad and Tobage 99.93%
Tatil Re Limited St Lucia 100,
BEH Holding Limited Trinidad and Tobago 1%y
ANSA Securitics Limited Trinidad and Tobago [0

On 1 January 2004, the Bank acquired 100% of the issued ordinary shares of Trinidad and Tobage Insurance
Limited. The cost of acquisition was $622.5 million, resulting in goodwill of $133.8 million. The purchase
consideration was discharged by the issuance of 54,605,263 new ordinary shares of the Bank at a price of
$11.40 per share, which was the publicly listed price ai 31 December 2003, As at 30 September 2010, the
Bank invested $10 million into its subsidiary ANSA Securities Linuted which represents 16060% of its
sharcholding,
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13. Investment properties
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Valuation at begmnmeg of the vear 1192469 119,469
Gamn from revaluation 9474
Valuation at close of'the vear 125,943 119469
Rental meome [rom praperies [E.899 16,760

Direcl operating expernses ansmg
[rom mvestment praopertes that
gencrated rental meame durmg

the period 6671 6,940

14. Property and equipment

Parent 2012 Furniture & Computer  Maotor Leasehold  Land & Total
equipment equipment vehicles improvements huildings

Cost

At beginning of the period 1,433 3,343 1,31¢ 2,935 - 9,032
Additions 13 1,782 - - - 1,795
Disposals - - - — - -
At end of the period 1,446 5,127 1,319 2,935 - 10,827
Accumulated depreciation

At beginning of the period 916 2,703 191 1.744 - 5,584
Current depreciation 50 418 252 294 - 1,014
Misposals _ = = =i = - -
At end of the period _ 996 3121 443 2,038 - 6598
Net hook value 450 2,006 876 897 - 4,229

=y = e w—— e
= - —
?f [— p—
b -
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For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

14. Property and equipment (continued)

Parent 2011 Furniture & Computer  Motor Leasehald  Land & Tatal
equipment equipment vehicles improvements huildings

Cost
At beginning of the period 1,389 3,113 1,021 2,935 - K458
Additions 44 232 1. - = 1.276
Disposals - s {702} - - (702}
At end of the period 1,433 3,545 1,319 2,935 — 9 {132
Accumulated depreciation
Al beginning of the period 893 2347 391 1,450 - 5.281
Current depreciation 53 336 L7 294 - Rl
Disposals - - (507} — - (3071
At end of the period 946 2703 191 1,744 — 5,584
Net book value 487 642 1,128 1,191 - 3448
Group 2012
Cost
At beginning of the period 18,721 55,259 1,320 2,935 18,857 97,092
Additions 4,160 9,613 - - - 13,773
Disposals _ - (10,296) = - - (10,296)
Al end of the period 22 8R1 34,576 1,320 2,933 18,857 100,369
Accumulated depreciation
Al beginning of the period 15,725 38,063 196 1,744 5,856 61,386
Current depreciation 464 1,155 248 294 84 2,245
Disposals = = = = = =
At end of the period 16,189 39,220 444 2,038 3,940 63,831
Net hook value 0,692 15,356 876 897 12,917 36,738




14.

Property and equipment (continucd)

Group 2011 Furniture & Computer  Motor Leaschold  Land & Total

equipment equipment vehicles improvements  buildings

Cost

At beginning ol the period 17,498 45,699 1,022 2.935 18,857 86,011

Additions 1,223 9,560 1.000 — — 11,783

Disposals - — (702) — - (702)
At end of the period 18,721 55,259 1,320 2,935 18,857 97,092

Accumulated depreciation

At beginning of the period 15,224 36,876 592 1,450 5770 59912
Current depreciation 501 1,189 109 294 86 2.179
Disposals — E (505) — — (505)
Atend of the period 15,725 38,065 196 1,744 5.856 61.586
Net book value 2,996 17,194 1,124 1,191 13,001 35,506

As at 31 December 2012, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated asscts still in use amounted 1o S388
for Parent (2011: §289) and $28,232 for the Group (2011: $28,153). There were no property and cquipment
retired, held for disposal, restrictions on title and pledged as sccurity for liabilitics as well as no contractual
commitments for the acquisition of property and equipment as at 31 December 2012 and at 31 December
2011 for both the Parent and the Group.

Goodwill

In accordance with IFRS 3, all assets that gave risc 1o goodwill were reviewed for impairment at 31
Deccember using the “value in use” method. Based on the results of this review no impairment expense was
required.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill arising through business combinations was generated by the acquisition of Trinidad and Tobago
Insurance Limited and its subsidiaries on 1 January 2004,

Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitics.
Following initial rccognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losscs.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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15. Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The following table highlights the goodwill and impairment information for each cash-generating unit:

Carrying amount of Goodwill: 133,762
Basis for recoverable amount: Value in use
Discount rate: 13.30%
Cash flow projection term: Five years
Growth rate (extrapolation period): 5%

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations

The values assigned to key assumptions reflect past experience. The cash flow projections are based on
budgets approved by senior management and the Board of Directors of the respective companies.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
e Discount rates
e  Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period

16. Deferred taxation
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Deferred taxation asset arising from:

95 108 Employee benefit obligation 880 784
117 - Property and equipment 2,887 130
2.041 807 Unrealised investment losses 7.425 8.450
2253 915 Total deferred tax asset 11,192 9,364

Deferred taxation liability arising from:

- — Life insurance reserves 51,241 54,150
2,026 2,127 Employee benefit asset 23,751 21,845
6,530 17,932 Finance leases 17,932 6,530

- 43 Property and equipment 43 -

330 2,241 Unrealised mvestment gains 45,630 36,596
8,886 22,343 Total deferred tax liability 138,597 119,121

A deferred tax provision is recorded in these financial statements based on the total liability, which could
foreseeably arise, should the entire distributable reserve in relation to life insurance business be transferred
to the shareholders’ account.
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17. Emplovee benefits
Defimed benefit Post retirement
pension plan health benefits
2012 2011 2012 2011
4)  Amounts recognisedin the statement of
financial position
Parent
Present value of defined benefit obligation 10,105 [iRbe 624 435
Fair value ol plan asscis {16264} (14515} — —
(6,159) (R719 624 435
Unrecognised actuaral (losses )/gains {2,348 619 (1907 (55}
(Assct)/liability recognised in the statement
of financial position (8.507) (8, 1001} 434 SRI
Group
Present value of defined benefit obhgation 79300 54002 3318 3897
Fair value of plan assets (170015 (1597871 = —
(90,706} (105.785) 5318 3.897
Unrecognised asset - 6,180 — (768)
Unrecognised actuanal (losses )/ gans - (4,296) 11,970 (L7 —
(Asset)/liability recognised in the statement
of financial position (93.002) (87.635) 3,548 3,128
b Amounts recogmisedin the statement of
income
Parent
Current semviee cost 323 305 31 27
Interest cost 480 433 33 30
Expected retum on plan assets {1,197y (1,130} - =
Net actuanal loss recogpnised = 2 1 2
(lncome_)s‘expv‘euse recognised in the (192) (192) 65 59
statement of mcome
Group
Cunrent serviee cost 2,088 1,791 LU6 168
Interest cost 3,960 3,681 204 239
Expected retum on plan assets (12,635) (12,300 —
Net actuarial (gain)loss recopnised in year 4,894 {398} 1 7
(Income) expense recognised m the
statement of meome (1.693) {7.226) 481 414
4 —_— e
= ¥ —————
- - ———— F—



ANSA MERCHANT BAMEK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

17. Employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit Post retirement
pension plan health benefits
2012 2011 2012 2011
¢) Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation
Parent
E}Elci,;::ii[}:[nsun value of defined benefit 6.099 5 % s S5
Current service cost 525 505 31 Tk
Plan participant contributions 215 175 1 =
Interest cost 480 433 33 30
Actuanal losses/(gains) on obligation 2937 (375} 135 (9
Benefits paid {151} {139} {11} (10
Clo_smg present value ol defined benefit 10,105 6.099 €24 135
obligation
Group
Opening present value ol defined benefit
obligation 54,002 48.845 3,897 3,143
Current service cost 2088 1,791 196 168
Plan participant contributions (766) 697 (28)
Interest cost 3,960 3,681 294 239
Actuarial losses on obligation 22204 1.010 1,055 434
Benefits paid (2,179 {2.022) (33) (87)
Closing present value ofdefined benefit
obhpation 79,309 54,002 5,361 3,897
d) Movement in net (assct)/liability

recognised in the statement of financial
position
Parent
l:;:].{ﬂs set)lability at the start of the (2.100) (7.733) 380 e
Net (income) expense recognised in the - , : _
statement of income (192) (192) 63 59
Contributions paid (215) (175) (L1} Ly
Movement in net (asset)/ liability
recognised at the end of the year (8,307) {8.100) 434 380
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17.  Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit Post retirement
pension plan health benefits
2012 2011 2012 2011
d) Movement in net (asset)/liability
recognised in the statement of financial
position (continucd)
Group
31?1:;5555 sct)/hability at the start of the (87.635) (79.712) 1129 > %00
Net income {6.587) (7.226) 491 414
Actuanal (gams)/loss recognised 24
Contributions paid (TR (697 (9G] (87}
Movement in net (assct)/hability
recognised at the end ofthe year (25002 (R7.635) 3548 3,129
e¢) Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Parent
Opening fair value of plan assets 14818 14.024 - -
Expected return on plan assets 1,197 1,130 = —
Actuanal (loss ) pam on plan assets (30 (347 — -
Enmployer contributions for cuntent service 215 175 11 1o
Plan participant contributions
for current service 215 175 - —
Benefits paid (150 (139) (11} (1o
Closmyg fair value of plan assets 16,264 14,818
Group
Openmyg fair valie of plan assets 159,787 154,060 - -
Transfers {1.546) = -
Expected return on plan assets 12,635 12,300 - -
Actuanal (loss ) pam on plan assets (242) (5.945) - —
Employer contribubions for current service T8O 6v7 96 49
Plan participant contributions
for current service 780 697 - 38
Benefits pad (2.179) (2.022) {96} (87)
Closmg far value of plan assets 170015 _ 159.787 _ - -
4 P ——— T
F- ¥ - — e —
- ’ E— —
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17. Employee benefits (continued)

f) Principal actuarial assumptions

Defined benefit
pension plan
Parent and Group
2012 2011
Discounl rate 5.00% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets 5.008% 8.00%
Future salary increases 500%% 6.0
Medical costs trend rates 3.000% 4.00%
g) Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets
Defined benefit
pension plan
2012 2011
Local equitics 3% 33%
Local bonds 3% 37%
Foreign mvestments 22% 20%
Real estlale/mortgages 2% 2%
Short-term securities 8% 8%
100% 100%
h) Experience history for the current and previous periads
Parent 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defmed henefit
obligation (10.10%) (6.099) (3,5000 (4.827) (3,790} (3,473)
Plan asset 16,264 14.818 14.024 11.895 10,667 10,550
Surplus 6,159 8,719 8.524 7068 6,877 7007
Experience adjustments
on plan habilifies (307) (373) (34) (22) 15 (339)
Fxperience adjustments
on plan assets (30) (347 923 a3 {786) {(766)



Employee benefits (continued)

h) Experience history for the current and previous periods {continued)

Group 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defined benefit

obligation (79,309) (54.002) {48.845) (45.463) (39379} (3K RO
Plan assel 170,015 159 787 154,064 132 902 122 (94 122 541
Surplus 90,706 105,785 105.215 87.439 82,715 83 741
Ixperience adjustments

on plan labilities (519) (1.381) (33) {2} 239 (1.710)
Fxperience adjustments

on plan assets (692) (3.554) 10,236 1.05% {9099} {4.313)

i) Return on plan assets

Defined benefit Post retirement
pension plan health benefits
Parent 2012 2011 2012 2011
Expected return on plan assels 1,197 1,130
Actuanal loss on plan assets (30) (347) - -
1,167 383 =
(-;I'l'll.lll
Expected retirn on plan assets 12,635 25300 — —
Actuarial (loss)/gain on plan assets (242) (5,945) 498 469

i) The Group expects to contribute $820 to its defined benefit plan in 2013.

k) Iffect of one percentage point change in medical expense increase assumption

Ageregate service Year end defined
and interest costs benefif obligation
Medical expense increase by 1% pa 101 G931

Medical expense decrease by 1% p.a. (B0} (777
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18. Accrued interest and other payables
Parent
2011 2012
22.007 20219 Interest payable
14,123 74,998 Client funds held for investment
1,648 1,609 Accrued expenses
5.645 8,130 Due to statutory authoritics
Distributions payable
293 293 Delerred [ee income
Unapplied premiums
Commussions payable
2,052 2.499 Stale dated cheques
Duc to reinsurers
2,054 11,859 Other creditors
47.822 119.607
19. Customers’ deposits and other funding instruments

Sectorial analysis of customers’ deposits and other funding instruments

Parent
2011 2012
139,572 21,676
159 309
1.138,137 903,663
1,277,868 925,648
20. Debt securities in issue
Parent
2011 2012
87,389 =
670,465 669 073
757,854 669,073

Individuals
Pension hunds/credit unions/trustees

Private companies/estates/
financial instinitions

Fixed rate bond (2001-2018)

Group
201z 2011
1,665 13.644
74,998 2.01%
13,793 11.987
16,913 9053
41449 3,491
293 293
2383 3,351
6.866 3.203
3813 4,805
21,009 16,534
18,085 12,327
172,971 82,707
Group
2012 2011
689,744 657,423
89,080 98,613
988,397 1,011,754
1767421 1,767,792
Group
W12 2011
E R7,389
669,073 670,465
669,073 757,854
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20.

21.

Debt securities in issue (continued)

In 2001 the Bank issued a fixed rate bond, which is repayable by 2016. Interest is fixed at a rate of 12.625%
per annum and the bond is secured by a charge over the Ultimate Parent’s assets up to the sum of $87.4
million. The Bank had an option to prepay the bond which commenced on the seventh anniversary of issue.
The Bank exercised this option in June 2012 and prepaid in full. The balance is now $ nil.

On December 2009, the Bank issued TT$350 million medium term notes maturing on 4 June 2015. Interest is
fixed at 6.5% per annum. On 2 August 2011, the Bank issued US$50 million medium term notes in three
tranches. Tranche 1, 2 and 3 will mature on 2014, 2016 and 2018, respectively. Interest is fixed at 3.40% for
Tranche 1, 4.60% for Tranche 2 and 5.20% for Tranche 3.

Investment contract liabilities

Group
2012 2011
At the beginning of year 156,795 144,800
Premiums received 10,604 9,358
Interest received 6,761 6,761
Liabilities realised for payment on death, surrender and
other terminations in the year (9,101) (4.724)
Other movements (4,909) 600
160,150 156,795

These investment contracts have neither reinsurance arrangements nor discretionary participation features.

(a) Reinsurance assets
2012 2011
Life msurance contract 7,700 5,500
General insurance contracts:
Premiums 47,653 52,363
Claims 29,226 67,275
84,579 125,138

— s ———™ s

— =
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ANSA MERCHANT

Insurance contract liabilities

(a) Reinsurance asset

Lilc insurance contracls
General insurance contracts
Total insurance contract
liabilities

(b) Life insurance contract liabilities may be analysed as follows:

(1)
With DPF
Without DPF

Outstanding claims

Total life insurance
contract liabilities

(i)
At 1 January
Premiums received
Liabilities realised lor
payment on death,
surrender and other
terminations i the
year

At 31 December

RANE ANNUAIL

REPORT 2012
Notes 2012 2011
Insurance Reinsurers® Net Insurance Reinsurers’ Net
contract share of contract share of
liabilitics liahilities liabilitics liabilities
22 (b) 817,417 (77003 809717 745 586 (35300 740086
22 (c) 262,707 {76,879} |85 828 310523 {119,638 190 K85
1,080,124 (84 5791 995545 1056109 (125138 930.97]
212 2011
Insurance Reinsurers’ Net Insurance Reinsurers’ Net
contract share af cantract share of
liabilities liahilities liahilities liabilities
216,004 - 21604 211978 - 211,978
577,367 - 577367 511,116 - 511116
793,371 - 793,371 723,094 - 723094
24,046 {7,700 16,346 22.492 {5, 5001) 16 9u2
817.417 {70y R9717 745 586 (5 5y FA0RA
745,586 (5500 740086 712,945 (11877 FOlO6R
119,158 (6. 408) 112,750 111,088 {7,991 10130097
(47.327) 4 208 (43,119 (78447 14.368 (64079
817,417 {7700y RO9 7T 745,586 (5500 740G




22. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

¢) General insurance contracts may be analysed as follows:

Claims reported and IBNR

Provisions for uncarned
premiums and unexpired
risk

Total at end of year

Claims reported and IBNR

Provisions [or claims reported
by policy holders

Provisions for claims
incurred but not reported
(IBNR)

Cash paid for cliams settled
m the year
Claims incurred

Total at end of year

Provisioms for claims reported by

poliey holders

Provisions for claims
weurred bul not reported
(IBNR)

BOUMDLESS FAITH

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

2012 2011
Insurance  Reinsurers” Net Insurance  Reinsurers’ Net
contract share of contract share of
liabilities liahilities liabilities liabilities
133,930 (29226 104,704 182,162 {67275 114 887
128,777 (47 6531 ®1.124 128.36] (52.363) 75998
262,707 (76,8791 |85, 828 310,523 {119,638) 11 KES
146,576 (338201 92756 116,217 {23470 92,7147
35,580 {13,433} 22,131 28075 (3,868) 22,207
182,162 {67,275} 114887 144,292 {29338) 114,954
(155,687) 74,955 {80,732) {72,764) {13,123) (83,887}
107 455 {36,906 70,349 1160634 {24 814) 83.820
133,930 (20.226) 104,704 182,162 {67275 114,887
107,761 {23,382 84,379 146,576 {33,821 92,756
26,1069 {3,844 20,325 35,586 (13.45%) 22,131
133,930 { 29,226_) 104_,?04_ 182,162 _(6',_"32’?5) 114,887

- —— e
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Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

(¢) General insurance contracts may be analysed as follows: (continued)

11)

Provisions for uncarned premiums and unexpired rsk

2012 2011
Insurance Reinsurers’ Net Insurance Reinsurers’ Net
contract share of contract share of
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
Provision lor
uncarned premiums 114,223 (46,514) 67,709 114,345 (40,775) 73,570
Provision lor
unexpired risk 14,138 (5,849) 8,289 14,158 (5,132) 9.026
128,361 (52,363) 75,998 128,503 (45,907) 82,596
Increase in the period 292259 (137.902) 154,357 303,129 (150,689) 152,440
Release in the period (291,843) 142,612 (149.231) (303.271) 144,233 (159.038)
Total at end of year 128,777 (47.653) 81,124 128,361 (52,363) 75,998
Provision lor
unearned premiums 114,577 (42.359) 72,218 114223 (46,514) 67.709
Provision lor
unexpired risk 14,200 (5,294) 8,906 14,138 (5.849) 8,289
128,777 (47,653) 81,124 128,361 (52,363) 75998

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the
ultimate value ol claims. Trinidad and Tobago Insurance Limited reports this claims information by
underwriting year of account

Claims development table

The risks associated with these insurance contracts and in particular, casualty insurance contracts, are
complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The
development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of an insurance company's ability to estimate the

ultimate value of claims.

The table below illustrates how the Company’s estimate ol total gross claims
outstanding lor cach accident year has changed at successive year-ends.



22, Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Claims development table (continued)

Insurance claims

Underwriling yvear 2007 2008 200 2010 2011 2012 Total
Estimate of outstanding claims costs:

-at end ofaccident year 113,609 8214 63325 57.448

- one year later 64,732 FOATT TFO810

- lwo years later 26,985 26405 31.870

- three years later 18,522 21.665

- four years later 21,889

- five years later 11,192
Current estimate of
cunmlative claims 11,192 15423 21.665 S8, 104 57448 244203
Cumulative paviments to date (2.647) (4.867) (490D (35.522) (32.043) (126,182}
Liability recognized in the statement
of financial position 8,545 13,5356 16,765 22,587 31,163 25405 118,021
Liability i respect ol prior years 15 94019
Total hability included in the statement
ol financial position 133,930

It is impracticable to prepare information about claims development on a net basis and claims developnient
that occurred prior to the 2004 accident year.

23. Insurance contracts, investment contracts and reinsurance assets - (erms, assumptions and sensitivities
a) Life insurance contracts and investment contracts
Terms and conditions

The Group offers a combination ol individual life, pension, annuity and group life coniracts with and
without discretionary participation [catures. These contracts are determined by actuaries and all
subsequent valuation assumptions are deternmined by independent consulting actuarics.

Key assumptions

Material judgement is required in determining the liabilities and in ihe cheice of assumptions relating
to both life insurance contracts and investment coniracts. Assumptions in use are based on past
experience, current internal data and conditions and external nrarket indices and benchmarks, which
reflect current observable market prices and other published information. Assumptions are
determined as appropriate and prudent cstinates are made at the date of valuation. Assumpiions are
further cvaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realisiic and reasonable valuations.
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Insurance contracts, investment contracts and reinsurance as

v - terms, assumptions and sensitivities

(continued)

a)

Life insurance contracts and investment contracts {continued)
Key assumptions (continued)

For insurance contracts, estimates are made n two stages. al inception of the contract, the Group
determines the assumptions in relation to future deaths. voluntary termmations, mvesiment returns and
administration expenses. Sccondly, at the end of each reporting pertad. new estimates are developed ta
determine whether the liabilities are appropmate in light of the latest current estimates. 1f the habilities
are not appropriate, the assumptions are altered to reflect the current estimates.

For investment contracts, assumptions used te determine the hahilities are also updaied at the end of
cach reporting period to reflect latest estimates.

The key assumptions to which the estimation af hahilities 1s particularly sensitive are as follows:

Movtality and morbidity rates

Assumptions are based on underlying experience as well as standard industry mortality tables,
according to the type of contract written. For contracts that msure the risk of longevity, appropriate
but not excessively prudent allowance 1s made for expected future mortality miprovements.
Assumptions are differentiated by sex, underwriting class and contract type.

Mortality rates higher than expected will lead to a larger number of msurance claims and claims
will occur sooner than anticipated, which will increase the expenditure and reduce profits for the
sharcholders.

Investment return

The weighted average rate of return is derived from a model portfolie that 1s assumed to back
labilities, consistent with the long-term asset allocation strategy. These estimates are based on
current market returns as well as expectations about future economic and Ninancial developments.
An increase in investment return would lead to an inerease in profits for the sharcholders.

Fxpenses

Operating expense assumptions rellect the projected costs of maintaming and servicing in force
policies and associated overhead expenses. Aar inerease m the level of expenses would result in an
increase in expenditure thereby reducing prefits for the sharcholders.

Lapse and surrender rates

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non payvment of prennums. Surrenders relate to
the voluntary termimation ol policies bv pelicvholders. Poliev termination assumptions are
determined using statistical measures based on the Group's experience and vary by product tvpe,
policy duration and changes in policyholders™ cirewnmstances.

The impact ol a deercase in lapse rates at carly duration of the policy waould tend 1o reduce profis
for the sharcholders but lapse rates at later policy durations 1 broadly neutral in eifect.
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23. Insurance contracts, investment contracts and reinsurance assets - terms, assumptions and sensitivities
(continued)
a) Life insurance contracts and investment contracts (continued}
Sensitivities

The table below indicates the impact of wvanous changes in assumptions which are within a
reasonable range of possible outcomes given the uncertamties inmvelved in the estimation process.

The table demonstrates the effect of changes m key assumptions whilst other assumptions renmain
unchanged, if these assumptions were changed in a single calendar vear. The correlation of
assumptions will have a significant elfect m determinimmg the ulimate claims habilites. but o
demonstrate the impact on the claims liabihities due to changes in assumptions. these assumption
changes had 1o be done on an individual basis. It shauld alsa he stressed that these assumpiions are non
linear and larger or smaller impacts cannot easily be gleaned from these results.

Assumption change Required inerease in insurance contract
liabilitics
2% Increase in mortality 3,100
5% Increase in expenses 9700
10% Change in lapsce rates 3400
1% Decrease 1n investment carnings 86,1000
b) General insurance contracts

Terms and conditions

The major classes of general insurance written by the Group mclude motor, property, casualty,
marine, general accident and other miscellaneous classes of husiness. Risks under these policies
usually cover a 12 month duration.

For general insurance contracts, claims provisions {comprising provisions for claims reported by
policyholders and claims incurred but not yet reparted} are established to cover the ultimate cost of
settling the liabilities in respect of claims that have cceurred and are estimated based on known
facts at the end of reporting period.

The provisions are relined as part of a regular ongomg process as claims experience develops,
certain claims are settled and further claims we reparted. Oustanding claims provisions are not
discounted for the time value of money.

-y
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23. Insurance contracts, investment contracts and reinsurance assefs - terms, assumptions and sensitivities
(continued)

(b) General insurance contracts (continucd)
Assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates 1s the Group’s past claims development
experience. Judgement is used to asscss the exient to which exicmal faciors such as judicial
decisions and government legislation affeet the estimates. as well as festing veported claims
subscquent to the end of reporting period.

The general insurance claims provision is sensilive to the above key assumphions. The sensitivity of
cerlain assumptions like legislative change, uncertainty in the estimation process and other factors
1s not possible to quantily. Furthermore, because of delavs that arnse between the occurrence af a
claim and its subsequent notilication and eventual seitlement, the ouisianding claims provisions are
not known with certainty at the end of the reporiing period.

Consequently, the ultimate habilities will vary as a resuli of subsequeni developments. Differences
resulting from reassessment of the ultimate labilities are recognised 1 subsequent financial

statements.
24. Stated capital
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011

Authorised
An unlimited number of shares

Issued
85,605,263 (2011 85,605.263)
667,274 667,274 ordimary shares of ne par value 667,274 667,274
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25. Net insurance revenue
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Gross insurance coniracts
- - premumrevenue 411417 414218
Remsurer’s share of msurance
- - contracls premium revenue {133,338} {148,657}
Net msurance coniracis
- - premumrevenuc 2T 079 265,561
Gross change in uncarned
premium provision and
- - unexpired risks (416} 143
Remsurer’s sharc of change n
uncarned premum provision
- - and unexpired risks (4.7049) 6,455
Net change in uncamed
premium provision and
= —  unexpired risks (5,125) 6,598
- - Net insurance revenue 272,954 272,159
20, Finance charges, loan fees and other interest income
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
91,229 95835 Fmance charges earned 95,785 91,229
25,581 22,653 Interest income on loans and advances 22,653 25,381
18,028 6,256 Other mcome 6,257 18,028
134 838 124,744 124,695 134,838
. - e ——— —— ——r.
= - —
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27. Investment income
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Interest and dividend income from investments at
11,478 9,073 fair value through statement of income 37.963 69.097
Interest and dividend income from other financial
78,503 69,031 assets 142,650 97,085
2315 31,765 Realised gains from investment securities 40,109 1,335
Unrealised gains on investments at fair value
1.419 3.674 through statement of income 48417 14,112
(9.337) 13.835 Other investment income 18528 (9.263)
84,378 127,378 287 667 172,366
28. Other income
Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
27,882 32,890 Administrative fees and commissions 24,301 24936
20,141 3,757 Foreign exchange trading and gains 3,757 23,825
1,935 785 Lease sales and recoveries 785 1,935
- - Property rental 16,170 14,869
- - Trustee and other fiduciary fees 5,661 5.430
3,117 6,457 Other 11,166 8,223
53,075 43,889 61,840 79,218
29. Net insurance benefits and claims incurred

There are no insurance benefits and claims incurred by the Parent. The following table represents the
insurance benefits and claims incurred by the Group.

General insurance Life insurance Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Gross insurance contracts benefits

and claims incurred 107,455 110,634 65,806 65,067 173,261 175,701
Resinsurers’ share of gross

insurance benefits and claims

paid (36,906) (24.814) (3.476) (949) (40,382) (25,763)

Net change in insurance contract

liabilities - - 68,078 31,580 68,078 31,580
70,549 85,820 130,408 95,698 200,957 181,518
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30.

31.

32.

33.

Interest expense

Parent
2011 2012
37.377 25.774
41,824 41,747
79,201 67.521

Customer deposits
Debt seeurtties m 1ssue

Provision for impairment of investments

The 1mpairment provisions arise [rom the Group’s debt invesiment securiiles at amariised cost.

Parent
2011 2012
== 12,625
7.026 52,785
7.026 65410

State owned
Corporate

Marketing and policy expenses

Parent
2011 2012
12,902 10,558
2,364 27214
15,266 12,772

Personnel expenses

Parent
2011 2012
10.049 17,479
138 142
542 513

10,729

18,134

Agents and brokers commissions
Agents allowance and bonus
Agenls policy epenses

Assel finance promohional expense
Advertising costs

Salaries and bonus
Group health and life plan
Other stall cost

Group
202 2611
47,651 55.788
41 747 41,824
89 398 97,612
Group
2012 2411
14816 -
87,939 7026
102,755 7.026
Group
2012 2011
25,093 25327
20,328 17,257
2,390 2,609
10,558 12,902
4,223 4,601
62,594 62,696
Group
2012 2011
37,341 28,280
1,990 1,489
2300 1,767
41,653 31,535

— e,
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34. General administrative expenses
Parent Group
2011 2012 212 2011
2,385 1.929  Prolcssional insurance 5,134 4,196
1,778 1.829  Property related expenses 7716 5.192
1.217 1,592 Subscriptions & donations 1.696 1.398
556 868  Fiance charges 2086 1.254
394 439 Communications 2,830 2.883
283 613 Travel & entertainment 1,257 437
192 214 Printing & slationery 1.643 934
- —  Write off of capital expenditure 6,900 -
2,282 2889 General expenses 16 (14 201548
9,087 10,373 45356 39.852
35. Taxation expense
Parent Group

2011 2012 2012 2011

19,740 8,602 Corporation tax 25,063 34,397

10,082 13,450 Deferred tax 13,993 10,850

278 436 Gireen Fund levy 1,122 817

30,100 22494 40,180 46,064

Reconciliation between taxation expense and
aceounting profit

Income faxes in the consolidated statement of
income vary from amonnts that wonld be
computed by applying the statutory tax rate for
the following reasons:

151,007 117,426 Accounting profit 189,812 229.680

37,752 29,357 Tax at applicable statutory tax rates 54,763 37,589
Tax effeet of items that are adjustable in
determmmng taxable profit:

(14.59%) (26,443) Tax exempt meome (26,153} (16.396)
15,807 36,250 Non-deductible expenses 37,848 16,249
(9.139) (17.106)  Allowable deductions {23,435) (12,196)

278 136 Provision for Green Fund Levy and other taxes _ (843) 818
30,100 22 494 Total taxation expense 40,180 46,064
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36. Segmental information

For management purposes the Group is organised into four operating scgiments based on ihe following core
arcas of operation to the Group:

Banking scrvices Asset financing, Merchani banking, Investment services, Securities trading
and Forcign exchange trading,

Mutual funds ANSA Sccured Fund. ANSA USS Secured Fund, ANSA EURO lncome
Fund, ANSA TTS Income Fund and ANSA USS Income Fund.

These Funds are registered in Trimdad & Tebago and established by the
Bank. The Bank is the Sponsor. Investiment Manager, Adnunistrator and
Distributor of these Funds.

Life insurance operations Underwriting the following classes of lenger-term msurance business: (1}
individual par and nen par hife insurance, (n} group life insurance, {1}
individual insurance and (1v} group annuiiy and pension.

General insurance Underwriting the following classes of shori-term insurance business: (i}

operations commercial and residential fire, (i1} general aceident, (ni} marine, (iv)
molor, (v) workmen cempensation, {(vi} group and individual health and
rental of property.

No operating sepments have been agarepated to form the above repartable operaimg segments,

Management momitors the operating results of 11s business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resowrce allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 1s evaluated based

with third parties

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of
the bank’s total revenue in 2012 or 201 1.

] - i — —— .
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36. Segmental information (continued)

The following table presents income and profit and certain asset and hability information regarding the

bank’s opcrating scgments.

2012

Total operating income
Total operating expense
Provision lor imp airment
Selling and admiminstration
cxpensc

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Tolal assets

Total habilities
Purchasc ol fixed asscts
Depreciation

2011

Total operating income
Total operating expense
Provision tor nap airment
Selling and admininstration
Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Total assets

Total liabilities
Purchase of fixed assets
Depreciation

Banking
services

296,011
(68,721)
(65,410)

(44,454)

117,426

(22.494)
94,932

2,756,531
1,746,448
1,795

(1,014)

272,291
(76,206)
(7,027)

(38,052)
151,007
(30,100)
120,907

2,760,754

1,746 447
1.276
(810)

Mutual
funds

72,824
(22.489)
(25,481}

(37,211}
(12,357}

(12,357}

1.185.053
1,197.962

53,291
(23.482)
(324)

(28.,528)
957

957

958,080
961,633

Life
insurance
aperations

207,350
(138,180}
(6013}

(43,827}
20,341
(3.324)
17.017

1.673.578
1,087,864
1.506

(689)

166,557
(103,580)

(35,649)
7,328

(2.865)
23,463

1,380,779

1,009,950

8,846
(783)

Generval
msura‘m:(‘. Eliminations
operations
221.494 {SML323)
(1076663 43,501

(5.851)

(36.624) {918)

72753 (8.351)
(14.362)

58.391] (8.251)
K24 348 (D08 156)
344,967 (373.069)

16472

(342) E
228308 (61,866)

(120.699) 47,832

- 325
{(37.931) (5,580)

69,078 (19.289)
(12,099) -

37.380 (19.289)
817,986 (66E,5350)
381,089 (97,073

1.661 -
{386) -

Tatal

747.156
(291.535)
(102.755)

{(163.034)
189,612
{40,180}
145,632

5.531,354

4,004,172
13,773
(2,245)

638,381
(276,133)
(7.026)

(145.740)
229.680
(46,064)
183.617

5,449,049

4,002,044
11,783
(2.179)
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36. Segmental information (continued)
Domestic
services
2012

Total operating income
Total operating expense
Provision for impairment
Selling and admninstration
expense

Profit before tax

Taxation

Prolit aller taxation

Total assets

Total habilities
Purchase ol lixed asscets
Depreciation

2011

Total operating income
Total operating expense
Provision for imp airment

Sellin

o and adminmstration
expense

Profit belore tax

Taxation

Profit alter taxation

Total assets

Total habilities
Purchase of lixed assets
Depreciation

711,871
(335.637)
(76.371)

(162,116)
140,158
(40,180)
99,978

5.811.908

4,377,241
13,773
(2,245)

701,879
(323.967)
(324)

(140,160)
237,428
(46.063)
191,365

5,640,375

4099119

11,783
(810)

Regional

67.066

(26.384)

40,682

40,682

249241

24 838

{(7.027)

17,831
17,831

41,866

International Eliminations Tuotal
18,742 (50,523} 747,156
(1,419} 45 501 (291,555}
- - (102 735}
(218}
(163.034)
17.323 (8351} 189812
— - [EUR R
17.323 {(8.351} 149.632
374301 (908,156} 5,531,354
= (373,069} 4004172
- - 13,773
- - {2.245)
{6,290} (61,860} 638,581
- 47832 {276,135)
- 325 {7.028)

- (3,380) {145,740)

{6,290) (19,289) 229,680
- (16,063)
{6,290) (19,289} 183,617
435358 (668,550) 5,449,049
s (97.075) 4,002,044
= = 11,783
(783) (586) (2,179)

- S —— T —,
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37. Related party transactions and balances

Partics arc considered to be related if one has the ability to control or exercise sigmficant influence over the
other party m making financial or operational decisions. The Bank 1s ulimately owned by ANSA McAL
Limited, incorporated in Trinidad and Tobago, which owns 82.48%, of the siated capital of the Bank.

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These include
hire purchase, finance leases, premium financing. deposits, imsurance coverage and foreign eurrency

transactions. These transactions were carried oul on commercial terms and at markei rates.

The related assets, liabilities. income and expense from these transactions are as follows:

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Assets

66,371 55,136 ANSA McAL Group N5 093 112873

72,449 65,607  Subsidiarics — -
Dircctors and key management

4,399 701 personnel )| 4,399

96,574 990 Otherrelated partics 14,856 114,620

239,793 122,434 100,650 231,892

Liabilities

31978 39,895 ANSA McAL Group 30,773 179,781

369,815 240,375 Subsidiaries - -
Directors and key management

107,679 - personnel 51.920 137,178

— 66,120 Other related parties 137,660 620

512472 346,390 240,353 317,588

Interest and other income

28,085 4203 ANSA McAL Gioup 27.533 54,298

25,550 33,107 Subsidiaries - -
Directors and key management

131 47 personnel 47 131

9,590 716 Other related partics 3,592 10,330

63,362 38,073 31,174 64,739
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37. Related party transactions and balances (continued}

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2001

Interest and other expense

2,436 2,385 ANSA McAL Group 8,649 10,722

8,051 7,881 Subsidiaries = =
Directors and key management

6,240 4,341 personnel 5,618 6.244)

s 3,575 Other related parties 7.548 10,023

17,327 18,182 21,815 26,985

Key management personnel are those persons having authenty and respensibibity for planning,
directing and controlling the activities ol the Group.

Key management compensation

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
5,224 5,827 Short-term benefits 9838 10,266
27 31 Post employment benehis 832 6HX
5,251 5,858 9,920 10,334
38. Financial Instruments

Fair values

The Group’s accounting policy on fair value mecasurements 1s discussed n accounting policy Note 2
vii. With the exception of insurance contracts which are specifically excluded under IFRS 7. the estimated
fair values of certain financial instruments have been determined using available market information or other
appropriate valuation methodologies that require judgement m nterpreting market data and developing
estimates.

i — —— .
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair values (continued)

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short-term financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amount of short-term financial asscis and habilities comprising cash and short-ierm
funds, fixed deposits, interest receivable and insurance receivable and other deblors and
prepayments, customer deposits and other funding instrumenis. accrued interest and other pavables
arc a reasonable estimate of their fair values because of the short matuniy of these instruments.

Investment securities

The lair value of trading investments is based on market quotations, when available. When market
quotations are not readily available, fair values are based on discounied cash flows or estimated
using quoted market prices of similar investmenis. In the absence of a market value, discounted
cash [lows will approximate fair value. This process relies on available market data to generate a
yield curve [or each country in which valuations were undertaken, using mierpelaied results where
there were no markel observable rates.

In pricing callable bonds, where information is available. the price of a callable bond 1s determined
as al the call date using the yield to worst. For bonds wiih iregular cash flows (sinking funds,
capitalization of iterest, moratoria, amortizations or balloon payments) a process of iteration using
the internal rate of return is used to arrive at bond values. Yields on all tax-free bonds are grossed-
up to correspond to similar taxable bonds ai the mevailing rate of corporation tax

Loans and advances

The estumated far value for performing loans 1s compuied as the funwe cash flows discounted and
the yield to maturity based on the eanying values as the imherent raies of interest in the portfolio as
those rates approximate market conditions. When discounted, the cash flow values are equal to the
caryimng va lue

Debt securities in issue

The Group wvalues the debt and asset-backed securitics wvsing valuation models which use
discounted cash flow analysis which incorporates either only observable data or both observable
and non-observable data. Observable inputs include assumptions regarding current rates of interest
and real estate prices; unobservable inputs include assumptions regarding expected future default
rates. prepayment rates and liquidity discounts.
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38. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values (continued)
v) Carrying amounts and fair values

The tables in the following pages summarnise the carrying amounis and the faw values of the
Parent’s and the Group’s financial asscts and liabilities for 2012 and 2011,

2012
Parent Group
Carrying Fair  Unrecognised Carrying Fair  Unrecagnised
values values gain/(loss)  Financial assefs values values gaini(loss)
279430 279430 — Cash and short-ferm funds SUGIBS  RO6053 -
= - — Fixed deposits 26,586 26586 -
T61.212 61212 —  Net leases 760,866 T60 K66 -
401,598 401.598 —  Loans and advances 561,575 501,573 -
639.577 658,011 18434 Investment securities 2836237 2976216 149978
7408 7468 — Interest recervahle 26,908 26908 =
i — —  Insurance receivable 47328 47328 —
2089285 2107719 18434 4995535 5145514 149 978
Financial liahilities
925 648 925 648 —  Customers’ depesits 1767421 1767421 -
9,343 9.343 ~  DBank overdraf 9.343 9,343 -
Accrued mierest and other
119,607 119,607 - payable 172,971 172,971 -
669073 669073 —  Deht securities in tssue 669,073 669 073 -
- - —  Investment coniract iabilities 160,150 160,150 -
1723671 1723671 - 2778958 27789358 -
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values (continued)

(v) Carrying amounts and fair values (continucd}
2011
Parent Group
Carrying Fair ~ Unrecognised Carrying Fair  Unreengmised
values values gain/(loss)  Financial assets values values gainfloss)
36627 316,627 —  Cash and short-tesm funds 484,623 484 623 —
Fixed deposits 21,390 21.390
640,543 640,543 Net leases G40 (84 640,059
430,144 4306144 —  Loans and advances 521,805 521,903 -
1.052 967 1,071,780 18813 Investment securiics 3.142 861 3134100 (3.761)
18316 18.316 Interesi recenvable 42051 42051
Insurance receivables 7082 37082
2,464,597 2483410 18,813 4 890 (1] 4 886,240 (3.761)
Financial lahilities
1.277 868 1,277,868 —  Customers’ deposiis 1.767 792 1,767,792 o
52611 52,611 —  Bank overdraft 55.871 35,871 -
Acerued micrest and other
47,822 47822 — payables 82,707 £2.707 =
757,854 757,854 —  Debt seenrities i issue 757,854 757.854 =
- - —  Investmen: contract liabilitie 156,795 156,795 -
2136155 2,136,155 - 2,821.019 2821019 —
(vi) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchies

The Group uses the following hierarchy for deferminimg and disclosing the fair value of financial
mstruments by valuation techniques:

Level 1

Included in the Level | catepory are financial asseis and habilities that me measwed in whole or in
part by reference to published quotes 1 an aciive market. A f(inancial mstrument is regarded as
quoted i an active market i quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, mndustry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actnal and regularly ocenrring market transaciions on an arm’s length basis
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38. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values (continued)
(vi) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchies {continued}
Level 2

Included in the Level 2 category arc financial asscts and liabilities thal are measured using a
valuation technique based on assumptions that are supporied by prices frem observable ecurrent
market transactions and for which pricing 1s ebtained via pricing services, but where priees have
not been determined in an active market. This mecludes financial assets with fair values based on
broker quetes, investments in private equity funds with fair values ebtamed via fund managers and
assels that are valued using the Group’s own models whereby the majoniv of assumptions are
markel observable.

Level 3
Included in the Level 3 calegory are [inancial assets and habilities thai are noi quoled as there are

no active markets to determine a price. These financial imstrumenis are held at cost, bemg the fair
valuc of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the invesiment, and are regularly assessed for

impairment

2012 Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total

Parent

Investment securites designated as at FVSI

Quoted equities 7,449 232 - 7.701

Government honds - 83,190 — 3,190

State owned company securitics 57.105 =; 57,105

Corporate bonds and debentures — 44,517 73 44,590

7449 185.064 73 192,586

Investment securites measured at OCIL

Quoted equaties 36,361 - - 36,361

Group

Investment securites designated as at FVSI

Unquoted equities - E 6,190 6,190

Quoted equities 294 839 54,824 - 349,663

Government honds 34,892 475,500 - 330,392

State owned company securities 36,185 199,107 - 235292

Corporate bonds and debentures 148,324 136,740 i3 285,137
534,240 866,171 6,263 1. 406,674

4 ——
am— —————
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38. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values (continued)

(vi) Determination of fair value and fair value hicrarchies {continued}

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tuotal

Parent

Investment securites designated as at FVSI

Quoted cquitics 2914 126 PIED]

Government bonds : 161,939 161,939

Corporate bonds and debentures 18,194 13,196 31,390
27.108 175.261 202.369

Investment securites measured at OCI

Quoted cquities 61.285 61.285

Group

Investment securites designated as at FVSI

Unquoted equities : 12,461 12461

Quoted equities 310,093 81.034 391,127

Govermment bonds 56,534 245,240 — 301,774

State owned company securities 38,733 27,987 ~ 66,720

Corporate bongds and debentires 146,162 28R BRT R 435 049

551,522 643,148 12,461 1,207,131

(vii) Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
As at 31 December 2012, there were no transfers of assets between Level 1 and 2.

(viii)  Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
Asscls
- Balance at | January 12,476 6,075
- E Gains recognized - 6,401
- 73 Purchases 223 =
- —  Transfers out of Level 3 (6,436) -
=T 73 6,263 12,476
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Risk management

Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.

This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within
the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to their responsibilities. The Group is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks; however, there are
separate independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
strategies, principles and policies and procedures. Day to day adherence to risk principles is carried out by
the executive management of the Bank and its subsidiaries in compliance with the policies approved by the
Board of Directors.

Treasury management

The Bank and its subsidiaries employ Treasury functions which are responsible for managing their assets
and liabilities and the overall financial structure. The Treasury function 1s also primarily responsible for the
funding and liquidity risks of the Bank and its subsidiaries.

Credit risk management

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the potential for loss due to a counter-party or
borrower’s failure to pay amounts when due. Credit risk arises from traditional lending, underwriting and
investing activity, and from settling payments between financial institutions. Impairment provisions are
established for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy, or in the state of a particular industry segment that represents a
concentration in the Group’s portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those provided at the end
of the reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

The Group structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or group of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and limits on the levels of credit risk that the Group can engage in are
approved by the Board of Directors.
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39. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk management (continucd)

Exposure to credit risk is further managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers to meet eapital
and interest repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits when appreprate. In addition,
collateral, corporate, state and personal guaraniees ave obtained,

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not. however, discharge the Group's hability as the
primary underwriter. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason. the Group remains lable for the
payment lo the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on am annual basis by
reviewing their [inancial strength prior to [inalisation of anv contract.

Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

The following lable shows the maximum exposure to credit risk which represents a worsi case scenario of
credit risk exposure, without taking account of anv cellateral held or ather credit enhancements attached.
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the eredin risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of 1ypes of collateral and valuation parameters.

Parent Group
Gross maximum exposure Gross maximum exposure

2011 2012 2012 2011
316,627 279,430 “ash and short-term finds 806,035 484,623
- - Fixed deposits 26,5806 21,390
640,543 T61.212 Net leases T60,866 A0, 08D
436,144 401 598 Loans and advances 501,375 521,903
082,642 575,514 Investment securities 2,470,384 2,739,258
18,316 7,468 Interest receivable 26,908 42.051
— — Insurance receivables 47328 37,082
— - Reinsurance assets 84,579 125,138
2,394,272 2,025,222 4,724,261 4,611,536
3,265 612 Contingent liabilities 612 3.263
— — Maortgapes with recourse 104 o4
- - Commitments 18 16,612
2.,397.537 2,025,834 4,724 995 4,631,517

The mamn types of collateral obtained are as follows:

For hire purchase and leases - charges over auto vehicles and industrial and general equipment;
For reverse repurchase (ransactions - cash and securities;
For corporate loans - charges over real estate property, indusirial equipment, mventory and frade
recervables,
¢ Formortgage loans - mortgages over commercial and residential properties.



BOUKMDLESS FAITH

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2012
(Expressed in Thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars)

39. Risk management (continued)
Cash and short-term funds and fixed deposits
These funds arc placed with highly rated local banks and Ceniral Banks within the Canbbean region where
the Group transacts business. In addition, cash is held by iniernational financial institunons with which the
Group has relationships as custodians or fund managers. All custedians and fund managers are highly rated
by Moody’s and have been classified with a “stable” outlook. Management therefore considers the risk of
default of these counterparties to be very low,
Net investment in leased assets and other installment loans, mortgages and poliey loans
These leases and loans arc individually insignificant. With the excepiion of policv loans, these facilities are
typically secured by the related asset. Policy loans are lent up io the maximum cash surrender value of the
policy to which it relates, and therefore there 1s no risk of loss ie the Group.

An aging analysis ol these [acilities is as [ollows:

In Avrears

Current 1-30 days  31-60 days  61-990 days Over 90 Total
davs
Parent
2012 694 589 52,646 9,218 1,689 3,073 761,212
2011 577947 51,747 7,067 2,009 1,773 640,343
Group
2012
Net leases 694,401 52,488 9215 1,689 3,073 760,806
Mortgages 73,914 11,555 3,271 3 368 82111
Policy loans 10,866 — - - - 10,866
779181 64,043 12,486 1,692 3,441 860,843
2011
Nel leases A77 493 Al,747 7.067 2.009 1,773 640,089
Mortgages 67,769 - 2,113 1,516 3,283 74,681
Policy loans 11,081 ~ - = — 11,081
656,343 51,747 9,180 3,525 3,056 725,851
¢ e —— W,
- —
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ANSA MERCHANT BAMEK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Risk management (continued)
Other loans and advances
The credit quality of other loans and advances has been analysed into the following categories:

High grade These facilities are current and have been serviced in accordance with the loan
agreements. In addition, these loans are well secured typically by mortgages
over properties in desirable locations, or shares in publicly traded companies
on the local stock exchange. Also included in this category are loans with
Related Parties which meet all of the above criteria.

Standard These facilities are current and have been serviced in accordance with the loan
agreements.

Special monitoring These are loans that are typically not serviced on time, but are in arrears for
less than 90 days. Payments are normally received after follow up with the
client.

Sub-standard These facilities are either greater than 90 days in arrears but are not considered

to be impaired, or have been restructured in the past financial year.

Impaired These facilities are non-performing.
Parent
Special Sub-
High grade Standard monitoring standard Impaired Total
2012 233,782 155,449 - 12,367 - 401,598
2011 408,290 15,504 - 12,350 - 436,144

Investment debt securities
The credit quality of investment debt securities has been analyzed into the following categories:

High grade These include Regional Sovereign Debt Securities issued directly or through a
state intermediary body where there has been no history of default.

Standard These securities are current and have been serviced in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the underlying agreements. In addition, included in
this category are securities issued by related parties and fellow subsidiaries
within the ANSA McAL Group of companies.

Sub-standard These securities are either greater than 90 days in arrears but are not
considered to be impaired, or have been restructured in the past financial year.

Impaired These securities are non-performing.
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39. Risk management (continued)

Investment debt securities (continued)

Sub-

High grade Standard standard Impaired Taotal
Parent
2012 157,518 325,475 65,853 26,668 575,514
2011 361,137 528,491 33.615 59.399 982 642
Group
2012 1,114,710 1,209,380 79 460 66,534 2470384
2011 1,009,498 1,557,901 107.346 64.513 2.739.258

Insurance receivablesg

An aged analysis of insurance receivables held by the Group 1s as follows:

Up to 45 days 45-90 dayvs Over 90 days Total
2012
(Gross premiums receivable 22,307 4298 16,120 42725
Provision for premiums
recervables = = (5,048) (5,048)
Giross remnsurance
receivables 1.045 210 9,478 10,733
Provision for reinswance
receivables = = (1,082) (1.082)
23,352 4,508 19,468 47328
2011
Gross premiums receivable 7486 4,101 23,756 35,343
Provision for premims
receivables — - (4,923) {4,923)
Ciross remsurance
receivables 2.695 62 4 987 7,744
Provision for reinswance
receivables = = (1,082) (1.082)
10,181 4,163 22,738 37.082
=y S A
L= ¥ — ——
?,a E ———
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39. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest raies will affect fuiure cash flows or the
fair values of financial instruments. The Group manages iis inferest rate exposuie by effenng fixed rates on
its funding instruments over the respective term. On the lending side. leans will be granted at fixed rates
over specified periods. As interest rates on both deposits and loans remain fixed over thewr lives, the risk of
fluctuations in market conditions is mitigated.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest raie risk 1s the nisk that the value of a financial
mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interesi rates. The Group takes on expesure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both 1ts far value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce losses m the event that
uncxpected movements arise. The Board sets limits on the level of nusmatch of miterest raie repricing that
may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by the Group Treasury departiment.

The table below demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in mnterest raies an the Group’s
income with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity ef mceme 1s the effect of the assumed changes
in interest rates on the income for one year, based on the {loating raie non-trading Nnancial assets and
[inancial habilities held at 31 December.

Sensitivity of income

Change in basis points 2012 2011

Parent + 100 200 1,745
-~ 100 (200) (1,745)

Group + 100 25,635 21,191
—100 (25,635) 21,191

Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Beard sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intra-day pesitions. which are menitored daily. The tables
on the following pages indicate the currencies to which the Parent and Group had significant exposure at 31
December on its monetary assets and liabilities. The analysis also caleulates the effects of a reasonably
possible movement of each currency rate against the Trinidad and Tobago dollar, with other variables held
constant.
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39. Risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Parent USD EURO JPY OTHER TOTAL
2012

Cash and short-tcrm funds 228.156 2.102 47 1.442 231,747
Loans and advanccs 227374 — - - 227374
Investment sceuritics 373,906 35465 = 4777 414 148
Interest receivable 5,284 - - 46 5335
Total financial assets 834.725 37.567 47 6265 878604

Customers’ deposits and other

funding instruments 238,551 = = ~ 238,551
Debt securitics 319.073 — - - 3194173
Total financial liabilities 557.624 — - — 557 624
Net currency risk exposure 277,101 37.567 47 6,265 324980
Reasonably possible change in

currency rate 5% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Effect on profit hefore tax 13,858 1.878 2 313 16,049
2011

Cash and shorl-term funds 182,233 23 46 137 182 439
Loans and advances 234,815 - — - 234 815
Investment securitics 504,196 41,119 - 545315
Total financial assets 921,244 41,142 46 137 962 569

Customers” deposits and other

funding instruments 732,760 = = = 732,760
Total financial liabilitics 732,760 — - 732,760

Net curreney risk exposure 188,484 41,142 46 137 229,809

Reasonably possible change in . .

currengy rate 5% 5% 5% 5% 3%
Effect on profit before tax 9,424 2,057 2 7 11,490

E—— —

=
'
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Risk management (continucd)

Currency risk (continued)

Group
2012

Cash and short-term lunds
Fixed deposits

Loans and advances
Investment securilics
Interest receivable

Insurance receivables

Total financial assets

Customers’ deposits and other

funding instruments

Bank overdrali
Total financial liabilities

Net currency risk exposure

Reasonably possible chanpe in

cunrency rale

Effect on profit before tax

2011

Cash and short-term funds
Fixed deposits

Loans and advances
Investment secunriies

Insurance receivables

Total financial assets

Financial liahilities

Customers’ deposits and other

fundmg mstruments

Total financial liabilities

Net currency risk exposure

Reasonably possible change m

currency rate

Effect on profit before tax

REFORT 2012

UusD BDS EURO OTHER TOTAL
371,633 3184 2.102 2069 3TR O8N
- 22.255 - 1,331 26,586
227.799 _ — s 227 799
1,040,740 22,573 < 6550 I 069 863
7,938 [ - 128 #.675
3.544 15049 - = 158,593
1,651,654 G3.670 2,102 13078 1,730,504

238,551 - - 2= 3855

319,073 = = - 319073
557.624 - - - 557.624
1,094,030 63.670 2,102 13078 1.172.880
A% 5% 3% 3% 5%
54,701 3,184 105 G54 38,644
256418 15,707 23 669 272817
: 14 832 4 436 19,268
234,815 - - - 234,813
1,123,169 23468 2,323 3443 1,132 405
1,282 11,488 - - 12,770
1,615 0684 63,493 2,346 8,550 1692075
665,825 665 825
665 825 665,825
249,859 05,495 2,346 8,550 1,826,250
5% 3% % 3% %
47,493 3275 117 428 51,313
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39.

Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Group may enceounter difficultv in meeiimg ebhgatiens associated with
financial instruments when they fall due under normal and stress circumsiances. To nutigate this nisk.
Management has arranged diversilied [unding sources in addition io its core deposii base. manages assels
with liquidity in mind and monitors [uture cash [lows and liquidiity en a daily basis. This imcorporates an
assessment o expected cash [lows and the availabilitv al high grade collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding il required.

The Group sources funds for the provision of lguidity from thice mam sourees: retml and whelesale
deposits, funding instruments and the capital markets. A substantial portion of the funding for the Group is
provided by core deposits and premium income. The Group mamtains a core fundmg base which can be
drawn on to meet immediate liquidity nceds. Facilities are also established with correspondent banks, which
can provide additional liquidity if conditions demand.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and mnterest rates of asseis and labilities are
fundamental to the management of the Group. The Group emplovs various asset/hability techniques to
manage liquidity gaps. Liquidity gaps are mitigated bv the marketable nature of a substaniial segment of the
Group’s assels as well as generating sulTicient cash from new and renewed cusiomer depesiis and insurance
policies.

Analysis of financial labilities by remaining contracisal matises

The table below summanises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2012
and 2011, based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations, over the remaiming life of those
liabilities,

Upteone  Two fo five Over five
Parent vear years years Total
2012
Customers” deposits and other funding instruments 834 134 91 494 - 925,648
Bank overdraft 9,343 - - 9,343
Debt securities in issue - 573,351 93,722 669,073
843,497 064 843 93,722 1,604,064
2011
Customers” deposits and other funding instruments 861,169 403 748 12,951 1,277 868
Bank overdraft 32,611 - - 32,611
Debt securities in issue - 374,326 183,528 757,854
913,780 978,074 196,479 2,088,333

— s ———™ s
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39. Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contracina! maturities (continued)

Up to Twa ta five Over five
Group one year vears vears Tuotal
2012
Customers’ deposits and other
funding instruments 1,744,096 23,325 = 1,767 421
Bank overdraft 9,343 - - 9343
Dcbt sccuritics in issue = 573351 95,722 GOR 073
Investment contracls 160,150 E - 160,150
1,913,582 596,676 95,722 2,605 987
2011
Customers’ deposits and other
funding instruments 1,670,993 96,798 — 1,767,792
Bank overdrafl 55871 - - 53,871
Debt securities in issue - 574,326 183,528 757,854
Investment contracts 156,795 — — 156,795
1,883,6§9_ 6’7!,!24_ 183,528_ 2,7383 12_

Equity price risk

Ecuuty price nisk 1s the nsk that the fair values of equiites will decrease as ihe resuli of decrease in equity
indices and the value of individual stocks The nen-trading equity price risk exposure anses from the
Group’s nvestment portfolio. The effect on income will anise as a result of the change in fair value of equuty
mstrnments categorised as i value through the statement of income. The effect on income at 31 December
due to a reasonably possible change in equuty indices, with all other variables held consiant, 1s as follows:

Market indices Change in equity price Effect on income

Yo 2012 2011
Parent
TTSE i 3 223 3
S&1 500 - & 20 713
Group
TISE - 3 7,743 6,925
S&1 500 - 8 3,531 13,881
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40.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital managemeni policy are 1o ensure that the Group complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Group maintains strong eredit ratngs and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise sharchelder value,

When managing capital which 1s a broader concept than the ‘equitv’ in the statement of financial pasition
the objectives ol the Parent and its subsidiaries are:

e To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the markeis where the parent and 1ts
subsidiaries operale;

o To safeguard the parent and the subsidiaries™ ability 1o confinue as a going concern so that they can
continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakehelders: and

e To maintain a strong capital base to support the develepment of 11z business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitered monthly by Management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines developed and implemented by the Central Bank of Trinidad & Tabago
for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the Ceniral Bank en a menihly basis.

The Central Bank requires each bank or banking group io: {a} held the minimum level ef the regulatory
capital of $§15 million, and (b) maintain a ratio of {otal regulatory capiial e the nsk-weighted asset {the
‘Basel ratio”) at or above the internationally agreed mimmum of 8%

In each country in which the Group's insurance subsidiaries operates, the local insurance regulator indicates
the required minimum amount and type of capital that must be held by cach of the subsidiaries in addition to
their insurance liabilities. The Group is subject to the insurance selvency regulations i all the territories in
which it issues insurance confracts. The minimum required capital must be maintained at all times
throughout the year.

For 2012 and 2011, the Parent and its subsidiaries complied with all of the externally impesed capital and
funding requirements to which they are subject at the date of this report.

-y
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41. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to
be recovered or settled based on contractual undiscounted cashflows,

Parent 2012 2011
Less Less

than 12 Over 12 than 12 Over 12

months months Total months months Total
Assets
Cash and short-term
funds 279.430 279430 316.627 316.627
Net leases 68.571 692,641 761212 51,186 389 357 640,543
Loans and advances 318914 82.684 401398 221924 214.224 436,144
Investment securitics 107,020 532.557 039377 U370 962 597 1.0152,.967
Interest receivable 7.468 7468 18316 18316
Other debtors and
prepayments 9932 9032 14.869 14,869
Taxation recoverable 11,163 11.163 4559 4.559
Investment in
subsidiaries 632,500 632,500 6325040 632,506
Property and
equipment o 4,229 4,229 - 3,448 3,448
Deflened taxasset s o915 218 = 2.253 2253
Fmployee benefit = 8,507 8,507 = 8,100 8,100
Total assets HO2 498 1,954,033 2,756,531 717.851 2.412.475 3,130,326

Customers” deposits 849,734 75,914 925,648 861,169 416,699 1,277,868

Bank overdiall 9,343 = 9,343 532011 — 32611
Accrued interest

and other payables 119.607 - 119,607 47,822 - 47,822
Debt secunties n

msue — 669,073 669,073 — 757,854 757,854
Deferred tax liability - 22,343 % 22,343 - 8886 % 886
Enplovee benefit

Total liabilities 978684 767,764 1,746,448 961,602 1,183,819 2,145421
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41. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued}
Group 2012 2011
Less Less

than 12 Over 12 thian 12 Ower 12

months months Total months months Total
Asscets
Cash and short-term 806,035 {06,035 A484.623 A84.623
Fixed deposits 26,586 26,586 21.390 21,3414
Net leases 68,571 692,295 TH0R6A 51,186 SR I3 640,084
lLoans and advances 318,982 182,593 501,575 221 988 299917 521,905
Investment sccuritics 877.331 1.948 906 2,826,237 937.323 2,205 538 3,142 861
Interest receivable 26,908 26,908 42.051 42 051
Insurance receivables 47,328 47328 37082 37082
Other debtors and
prepayments 33.230 33,230 43,016 43.016
Reinsurance asscts 76.879 7.700 84579 125,138 125,138
Taxation recoverable 12.373 12,373 5,158 5,158
Investment properties 128,943 128 243 119,469 119 460
Property and
cquipment 36,738 36,738 35,506 35.506
Goodwill 133,762 133762 133.762 133,762
Deferred taxasset 11,192 11,192 9364 2 364
F'mployee benelit
a5EEl 95,002 95 (K12 87.635 R7.635
Total assets 2,294,224 3.237.130 5.531.334 1,968,955 3,480,094 5,449,049
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits 1.744.096 23,325 1.767.421 1,670,994 96,798 1.767.792
Debt secunties in
ssuc 669073 669,073 T57.E54 757 854
Bank overdralt 9.343 2 343 55,871 535,871
Accrued interest
and other payables 172,971 172,971 82,707 N2.707
Taxation payable 2.945 20945 2.666 2.666
Deferred tax lability 138,597 138,597 119,121 119121
F'mployee benelit
obligation 3.548 3,548 3129 3,120
Investment coniract
habilities 160,150 160,156 156,795 156,795
Insurance contract
liahilitics 286,753 793371 1.080,124 3334015 723,004 1 056, 104

Total liabilitics 2,376,258 1.627.914 4.004,172 2 302,048 1.GR0 S 40012 (144
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42. Capital commitments
Parent Group
2011 2012 2612 2611
Capital commitments
- B Contracts outstanding 18 16,612
43. Contingent liabilities
(i) Customers’ liability under acceptances, guarantees, indemnities and letters of credit

The Group’s potential hability, for which there are equal and offseting claims, aga
customers 1n the event of a call on these comnutmenis 15 as follows:

Parent Group
2011 2012 2012 2011
3,265 612 Acceptances 612 3.265
(ii) Litigation

At 31 December 2012, there were certamm lepal proceedmes outstanding agammst the Group.
Provisions have been established as indicated necessary based en professional adviee received.

44, Proposed dividends

The Board ol Directors declared a [inal dividend of $10.7i {2011 1: S(.71} per share for the year ended
31 December 2012, This dividend amounting to $5%.924 (201 1: $59.9241 15 not recorded as a hability in the
statement of financial position.

45. Subsequent events
As at | January 2013, the Bank entered into an agreement io acquire 100% of Consalidated Finance

Company Limited, which will become a subsidiary of the Bank and form part of the Bank Group. The
details of the acquisition are expected to be completed within the f{ivst half of 2013
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Directors’ and
Substantial Interests

ANSA MERCHANT BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

March 31,2012 March 31,2013

Beneficial Beneficial

Anthony N. Sabga, CMT 0 0
Ray A. Sumairsingh 2,000 2,000
Chip Sa Gomes 4,000 5,000
Gregory Hill 0 0
Kathleen Galy 0 0
Timothy Hamel-Smith 0 0
Judy Chang 0 0
Jeremy Matouk 3,202 3,202
Nicholas W. S. Owen 0 0
Ian E. Welch 0 0

NOTES:

(a) Dr.Anthony N. Sabga has a beneficial interest in ANSA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, the
major shareholder of ANSA McAL LTD.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS
Shares of no par value
as at March 31, 2013
ANSA McAL Limited 70,605,263

A substantial interest means a holding of one-twentieth or more of the issued shares of the
Company.



Report of the Directors

BOUMDLESS FAITH

The Directors present their report and Statement of Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2012,

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 5000 5000
Profit attributable to shareholders 149,620
Dividends on ordinary shares
- Final paid (2011) - 75¢ (59,884)
- Interim paid - 15¢ (12,840)
(72,724)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve [(16,440)
Transfer to General contingency reserves (1.005)
Other Life Insurance Movements (2,315)
Other reserve Movements 3,570
60,706
Adjusted prior year balance 653,348
Retained profits at the end of the year 714,054
DIVIDENDS

The Directors declared a final dividend of 70¢ per ordinary share, which, with the interim of 15¢
already paid, makes a total of 85¢ for the year, The final dividend will be paid on May 24, 2013 to
members on the register of shareholders at May 16, 2013,

DIRECTORS

Pursuant to paragraph 4.4 of By-Law No. 1 of the Bank, Messrs Anthony N. Sabga, Ray A
Sumairsingh, Timothy Hamel-5mith, [eremy Matouk, Nicholas W. 5. Owen, and lan E. Welch elected
at the last Annual Meeting, together with Mr. Chip Sa Gomes, retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to paragraph 4.3 of By-Law No. 1 of the Company, the Directors propose that Mrs,
Kathleen Galy and Judy Chang be elected as Directors.

AUDITORS

Auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office and offer themselves
for re-election.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

AL
Nigel Edwards

Corporate Secretary

ANSA Centre

11 Maraval Road
Part of Spain
April 15, 2013



Noticeof
Annual Meeting of Shareholders

ANSA MERCHANT BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2012

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Filth Annual Mccting ol Sharcholders of ANSA
MERCHANT BANK LIMITED will be held at the ANSA McAL Board Room, 10" Floor, Tatil

Building, 11 A Maraval Road, Port of Spain on Wednesday May 22, 2013 at 4:00 p.m. for the
following purpose:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

I. Toreceive and consider the Report of the Directors and the Audited Financial Statements lor

the financial year ended December 31, 2002 together with the Report of the Auditors and 1o
note the final dividend.

To cleet Dircctors.
To appoint the Auditors and 1o authorize the Directors 1o fix their remuncration,

L b

DATED at Port of Spain, Trinidad, this 15" day of April, 2013

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

A

Nigel Edwards
Corporate Scerclary

NOTES

I, Noservice contracts were entered into between the Company and any ol its Dircclors,
A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoml proxy (o attend and vote in his or her stead. Such proxy need not also be a
member of the Company.

3. Auached 1s a Proxy Form which must be completed. signed and deposited with the

Corporate Sceretary of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time fixed lor
holding the Mecting.

b



)

{1

BOUNDLESS

NAME-QOF COMPANY: ANSA Merchant Bank Limited
COMPANY NO: A—-350(c)

PARTICULARS OF MEETING:

The Thirty Fifth Annual Meeting of the Company to be held at the ANSA McAL
Board Room. 10™ Floor. Tatil Building, 11 A Maraval Road, Port of Spain,
Wednesday May 22, 2013 at 4:00pm

SOLICITATION:
It is intended to vote the Proxy solicited hereby (unless the Shareholder(s) directs
otherwise) in favour of all resolutions therein.

ANY DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT SUBMITTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 76 (2)!
No statement has been received from any Director pursuant to Section 76 (2) of The
Companmies Act, 1995,

ANY AUDITOR'S STATEMENT SUBMITTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 171 (1)
No statement has been received from the Auditors of the Company pursuant to Section
171 (1) of The Companies Act, 1995,

ANY SHAREHOLDER 'S PROPOSAL AND/OR STATEMENT SUBMITTED
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 116 (a) AND 117 (2);

Mo proposal has been received [rom any shareholder pursuant 1o Sections 116 {a) and
117 (2) of The Companies Act, 1995,

April 15, 2013 Corporate Secretary

Nigel Edwards ,%é Q

Sl



REPUBLIC OF TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO.
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1995, [SECTION 144]

L et being a
member/members of ANSA Merchant Bank Limited hereby appoint Dr. Anthony N.
Sabga of Port of Spain, or failing him Mr. Ray A. Sumairsingh of Port of Spain, or failing
T | PP U OF - covmnimiiisaimmasng as my/our
proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual Meeting of the Company to be
held on Wednesday, May 22, 2013 and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated this ..conmcersnimnsismminy mismrns s sninst o Ay OF oo imrivmn s s 2013.
1 A R e A S P e A
PLEASE INDICATE WITH AN *X" IN THE SPACES BELOW HOW YOU WISH FOR AGAINST

YOUR VOTES TO BE CAST
I. To receive the Directors” Report and Financial Statements.

2. To elect the following Directors in place of those retiring:

Dr. Anthony N. Sabga A A
Mr. Ray A. Sumairsingh

Mr. Chip Sa Gomes C C

Mr. Timothy Hamel-Smith D D

Mr. Jeremy Matouk E E

Mr. Nicholas W.S. Owen E E

Mr. lan E. Welch © ©

H H

3. To elect Mrs. Kathleen Galy and Mrs. Judy Chang as a Director of the company. : :

4. To appoint Auditors and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.

NOTES

1. To be effective, this Form or other authority (if any) must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, ANSA Centre, 11A Maraval Road, Port of Spain,
not less than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

2. Any alteration made to this Form of Proxy should be initialed.

3. Ifthe appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be under its Common Seal,
or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized in writing.

4. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any holder is sufficient but the names of
all joint holders should be stated.

5. Return of the completed Form of Proxy will not preclude a member from attending
and voting at the Meeting.



BOUMDLESS FAITH
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